Document Pack

. PN Mark James LLM, DPA, DCA
angor - Sy Gar Fc’;ifv;lgithredtwr,
% . ief Executive,
Carmarthenshqu Neuadd y Sir, Caerfyrddin. SA31 1JP
Q=2 County Hall, Carmarthen. SA31 1JP
n & Y
ty Cou®™

FRIDAY, 2 FEBRUARY 2018

TO: ALL MEMBERS OF THE ENVIRONMENTAL & PUBLIC
PROTECTION SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

| HEREBY SUMMON YOU TO ATTEND A MEETING OF THE
ENVIRONMENTAL & PUBLIC PROTECTION SCRUTINY
COMMITTEE WHICH WILL BE HELD IN THE CHAMBER,
COUNTY HALL, CARMARTHEN AT 2.00PM ON MONDAY,
12™ FEBRUARY, 2018 FOR THE TRANSACTION OF THE
BUSINESS OUTLINED ON THE ATTACHED AGENDA.

Mark_James cae

CHIEF EXECUTIVE

&4 PLEASE RECYCLE

Democratic Officer: Janine Owen

Telephone (Direct Line): 01267 224030

E-Mail: JanineOwen@carmarthenshire.gov.uk
Ref: AD016-001

Y
omeor S Giry' Your counciLdoitonline

Carmarthenshire www.carmarthenshire.gov.wales
.

T



ENVIRONMENTAL & PUBLIC PROTECTION
SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

14 MEMBERS

PLAID CYMRU GROUP — 7 MEMBERS

Noghkwbh =

Councillor
Councillor
Councillor
Councillor
Councillor
Councillor
Councillor

Alun Davies (Vice-Chair)
Jeanette Gilasbey
Dorian Phillips

Susan Phillips

Alan Speake

Dai Thomas

Aled Vaughan Owen

LABOUR GROUP - 4 MEMBERS

hoOb=

Councillor
Councillor
Councillor
Councillor

Penny Edwards
Amanda Fox

Tina Higgins

John James (Chair)

INDEPENDENT GROUP — 3 MEMBERS

1.
2.
3

Councillor
Councillor
Councillor

Arwel Davies

Joseph Davies

Vacancy

Y
omeor iy ‘-'Ji_l’)k ~ Your counciLdoitonline
Carmarthenshlre: www.carmarthenshire.govwales
[ )

el
. T
firy o




o & o N

AGENDA

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE

DECLARATIONS OF PERSONAL INTEREST
DECLARATIONS OF PROHIBITED PARTY WHIPS
PUBLIC QUESTIONS (NONE RECEIVED)

SERVICE DELIVERY PLAN 2017/18 -
ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION SERVICES

HIGHWAY FOOTWAY AND ROAD SAFETY INVESTMENT
PROGRAMME UPDATE

REVIEW OF LED CONVERSION PROJECT
TOWY VALLEY PATH - EXPENDITURE
FORTHCOMING ITEMS

Carmarthenshire www.carmarthenshire.gov.wales

Y
I:-"'!‘.'.-. —
gy

b Y
car S Giry‘ Your counciL doitonline

i i
L

55 - 62

63-70
71-76
77-78




This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Iltem 5

ENVIRONMENT & PUBLIC PROTECTION
SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

12™ FEBRUARY, 2018

SERVICE DELIVERY PLAN 2017/18
ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION SERVICES

To consider and comment on the following issues:

To recommend to Executive Board that the Service Delivery Plan for 2017/18 be approved.

Reasons:

1. There is a requirement that the food service delivery plan is approved annually in
accordance with the Food Standards Framework agreement.

2. The service delivery plan provides the basis for the Environmental Protection section

priorities and programmed work for 2017/18

To be referred to the Executive Board/Council for decision:

Executive Board: YES - 26t February, 2018
Council: NO

Executive Board Member Portfolio Holder:
Clir. P. Hughes (Public Protection Portfolio Holder)

Directorate
Communities

Name of Head of Service: | Designation

Tel No.
01267 228960
E Mail Address:

Robin Staines Head of Homes and Safer
Communities RStaines@carmarthenshire.gov.uk
Tel No.
Report Author: 01267 228929
Designation
Sue Watts . .
] . E Mail Address:
Environmental Protection
Manager sewatts@carmarthenshire.gov.uk
™ EICH CYNGORaArleinamdani
Caf%‘:;'tﬁ:;fhag vvvvvv‘sirgar,l\yvv.cymrul ' N -
&, =% YOUR counciL doitonline Fageo

ity Cos www.carmarthenshire.gov.wales


mailto:RStaines@carmarthenshire.gov.uk
mailto:sewatts@carmarthenshire.gov.uk

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

ENVIRONMENTAL & PUBLIC PROTECTION
SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

12™ FEBRUARY, 2018

SERVICE DELIVERY PLAN 2017/18
ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION SERVICES

The Environmental Protection Section is required by the Food Standards Agency and the
Health and Safety Executive to produce an annual Service Delivery Plan. The format of
the plan is prescribed in the relevant Framework Agreements.

The Plan provides an outline of the Council’s service aims and objectives including links to
the corporate objectives and plans. A brief description of the Council is included, defining
its infrastructure, economy and organisation structure. The Plan also requires the scope
and demands of the Environmental Protection Services.

The Plan is divided into sections’ which provide details of specific areas of each of the
services and workplans’ for the coming year. This is an opportunity to highlight where
there are weaknesses and strengths within the relevant Teams. There are specific areas
that are highlighted as being at risk and those that the section is no longer able to provide
because of the limited resources.

A breakdown of resources is provided, including staffing costs, administration, supplies
and services, training etc. with comparisons between financial years. Details of the
breakdown of the costs are included within the text.

The final section contains information and details of quality assessments and illustrates
the various ways that the Section ensures consistency, efficiency and competency.

The Service Delivery Plan is subject to annual review.

DETAILED REPORT ATTACHED? YES
oo Sir Gar R EICH cYNGOorRarleinamdani
P 6 Car‘n;arth:;shag wwwisirgarllyw.cymru
Fageo &, =% YOUR counciL doitonline

ity Cos www.carmarthenshire.gov.wales



IMPLICATIONS

| confirm that other than those implications which have been agreed with the appropriate Directors / Heads
of Service and are referred to in detail below, there are no other implications associated with this report :

Signed:  Robin Staines Head of Homes and Safer Communities

Policy and Legal Finance ICT Risk Organisational Physical

Crime & Management | Development Assets

Disorder Issues

NONE NONE NONE NONE NONE NONE NONE
CONSULTATIONS

I confirm that the appropriate consultations have taken in place and the outcomes are as detailed below

Signed: Robin Staines Head of Homes and Safer Communities

1.Local Member(s) - No consultation necessary
2.Community / Town Council - No consultation necessary
3.Relevant Partners - No consultation necessary

4.Staff Side Representatives and other Organisations - No consultation necessary

Section 100D Local Government Act, 1972 — Access to Information
List of Background Papers used in the preparation of this report:

THERE ARE NONE

Title of Document File Ref No. | Locations that the papers are available for public inspection

- - -
o Sir Gar R EICH cYNGORarleinamdani

2 . www.sirgar.llyw.cymru D
Carmarthenshire

A YOur counciLdoitonline r'E[g <
“ www.carmarthenshire.gov.wales

-

e
gy Con



This page is intentionally left blank



D N
omor Sir Gar 2
Carmarthenshire

B N
00’”)/ Cout®

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION SERVICES

SERVICE DELIVERY PLAN 2017/18

Page 9




INDEX

Page Section Title
Number number
3 1 Summary
7 2 Service Aims and Objectives
10 3 Background
12 4 Food Safety and Workplace Health and Safety
25 5 Licensing
29 6 Pollution
33 7 Public Health
39 8 Resources
40 9 Quality Assessment
41 10 Review
42 Appendix 1 Political Structure
43 Appendix 2 Strategic Management Structure
44 Appendix 3 Budget
SDP 2017/18 Page 2

Page 10



1.0

SUMMARY

The report outlines the roles and responsibility of the Environmental Protection
Section, together with the food standards work carried out by the Business and
Consumer Affairs Section. It illustrates the demands on the service and the
challenges that must be addressed for 2017/18. The work is predominantly
statutory.

1.2 The Division is in the process of a re-alignment. The details of this are identified

1.3

1.4

1.5

1.6

1.7

below.

Staff of the Public Protection Division work flexibly and as a result of no
budgets available for paid overtime working, inspections and visits are
undertaken out of core hours on a pre-planned basis, are worked on a
‘goodwill’ basis by Officers who receive time off in lieu for the hours worked.
This does have an impact on the day to day operation of the Sections’ and
requires careful monitoring. There is no current ‘on call’ system, as there is no
budget and any emergency response, relies upon the goodwill of Officers.

The service has experienced year on year efficiencies including a minimum of
12% over the following 3 years (2015/16 — 2017/18). As a result, there have
been reduced resources, with an impact on service delivery. This is set against
an increase in demand in some functional areas, such as the food hygiene
rating act, planning applications, introduction of additional legislation with no
additional resources (such as dog chipping, anti social behaviour, sampling for
water/food quality, smoking in vehicles with children etc) and validation of
fees/income for example. The main priority for the Service is the protection of
public health, consumers and local businesses and animal health. Decisions
on priorities of work are based on risks that may affect those groups.

Impacts that may influence the food hygiene inspection programme are the
Team’s response to major food incidents, food poisoning outbreaks,
investigation of the illegal meat trade, food fraud, product recall Notices and
water disconnections particularly to food businesses.

A large proportion of Pollution and Public Health Teams’ work is reactive, such
as noise control and the investigation of statutory nuisance. There are
occasions when the demand may exceed the capacity of the Teams’. This is
continually monitored and addressed where possible, by re-prioritising
workloads and utilising qualified officers to ensure that there is flexibility within
the teams to meet high pressures/demands.

Proactive work of the Pollution Team is dominated by the development of
windfarms and sustainable energy projects, the monitoring of air quality
including the analysis and interpretation of the results and in engaging
developers to ensure that public health is not compromised. Remediation of
contaminated land is a statutory responsibility. The Contaminated Land
Inspection Strategy will be reviewed to focus level of activity from enforcement,
to working more closely with developers, thereby securing remediation through
the planning and regeneration process.

SDP 2017/18

Page 1

Page 3
1



1.8 The majority of work in the Public Health Team involves dealing with Statutory

1.9

1.10

1.11

1.12

1.13

1.14

Nuisance work such as odours, smoke, dust etc, premises in a condition that
cause public health issues, such as waste accumulations or attractions to
vermin, as well as fly tipping. The team also undertakes monitoring of drinking
water and bathing water in the County, and provides advice / enforcement on
ensuring water quality meets required standards. Officers also deal with pest
control work (both advisory and enforcement), and dealing with stray dogs
across the County.

There are a number of further changes to the legislation in licensing section
including the Deregulation legislation which will have an impact in both the taxi
and the premises licensing. This will require the review of our current policies
and procedures and is likely to have an impact on license fees income.

There is a considerable amount of joint working with partners. An illustration of
this is the regulation of large events and sports ground safety inspection. The
Section leads multi agency groups, ie. the Safety Advisory Groups that deal
with the issues, and they consist of representatives of the Police, Fire and
Rescue Service, Ambulance Service and Local Health Board. As a result of
this working, the Group has developed good working relationships with the
applicants and licence holders. This year, the section is working on numerous
larger events and safety at sports grounds

The Section work closely with other Authorities to ensure consistency of
approach where possible. This is demonstrated by active engagement with the
Welsh Heads of Environmental Health Expert Panels and regional groups.

One particular issue being considered is the united approach to the current
proposals by the Food Standards Agency in relation to the Regulation for
Change agenda which, in essence, is looking to alter the current (successful)
implementation of the food legislation as the responsibility of the Local
Authority Environmental Health Officers to consultants (at a cost to the
business) with the LA EHO’s having the responsibilities for enforcement. This
has the potential impact on the current team by altering the demands within
the section and may need the officers to ‘do things differently’.

The National Enforcement Priorities for Wales will continue to drive the
regulation agenda and the Regulators Compliance Code has been introduced
in Wales.

Particular impacts for 2017/18 include :-

(i) A realignment of services within the Division. This is likely to result in
one team responsible for Food Safety and Standards (and possibly feed
safety) to provide a ‘farm to fork’ service. This is currently being
delivered between two teams. Additionally, that the new Environmental
Protection Section deliver a tenure neutral approach to statutory
nuisances and anti-social behaviour.

SDP 2017/18
Page

12

Page 4



(ii)

A review has been undertaken of all shellfish sampling conducted in the
Three Rivers and Burry Inlet. Sampling of biotoxin and hygiene levels,
are essential to determine both the health status of commercial shellfish
beds and also the continual monitoring of their classified status. The
potential opening of additional beds will require further additional
resource. This additional demand will have to be resourced by the
section.

(iif)  Introduction of new statutory responsibilities with no additional

resources including introduction of no smoking in vehicles with children
present, extending the monitoring/testing private drinking waters
(including radon), implementation and enforcement of dog chipping
legislation, Public Health (Wales) Act etc.

(iv)  Determine action plans for the Air Quality Management Areas in

(v)

Carmarthen and Llanelli. The section is enhancing the plans by working
in conjunction with Swansea University to observe the health impact on
the action plans to improve air quality. In addition to this, work is also
planned to engage with local schools in the areas to raise awareness of
poor air quality and to instigate change in school journey behaviours.

Reviewing the current in house pest control service with the intention of
widening the remit. In addition, the service is undertaking a procurement
exercise for the dog pound facilities.

(vi)  Promoting safeguarding principles within the Taxi drivers of

Carmarthenshire. This will be carried out in conjunction with the
corporate safeguarding section, Police and School Transport section (in
Environment Department). This section has also invited colleagues in
neighbouring Licensing/safeguarding sections to share and work
collaboratively in implementing the training and awareness on a
regional basis.

(vii)  Setting of discretionary fees to recover real costs. The validation of

budget income year on year continues to be a problem, as the majority
of fees and charges are prescribed and cannot be set by the Council.
In recent years, this has meant that the Public Protection Division has
had to find an increased efficiency saving because of the validation
process and a failure by successive Governments’ to increase
prescribed fees. Additionally, the changes in legislation and business
types has resulted in a reduction in such fees over time. Licensing and
Environmental Permitting income is currently overstated as a result.

1.15  Forward work plans for continuous improvement for 2017/18
1.15.1 Complete the Division re-alignment ensuring that the new services are
bedded in quickly so as to prevent disruption to the service user. This will
require provision for shadowing and additional training where necessary
which will result in a ‘one team’ ethos.
SDP 2017/18 Page 5

Page 13



1.15.2

1.15.3

1.15.4

1.15.5

1.15.6

1.15.7

Continue to make links with and explore possible projects with other
agencies, such as Public Health Wales, and educational establishments
such as Swansea University.

Continue working with Planning Section to review and improve means of
receiving relevant planning applications. Additionally, liaising with the said
Department to consider the use of a ‘pool’ of agreed conditions. Additionally,
exploring the extent of information required from this section to the Planning
Section as part of their pre-application meetings/fee. As part of this, to
explore the possibility of providing more detailed pre-application advice for
a fee.

Continue to liaise with other Departments and Local Authorities to create
innovating, cross cutting ways of delivering more efficient services to
customers.

To work closely with colleagues in Social Services to explore the possibility
of identifying relevant support for individuals particularly in case of
nuisances (where considered necessary). This may alleviate the possibility
of re-curing complaints.

To monitor the demands and effectiveness of the treatment for pests from
Housing and Leisure sections and to consider a business case to expand
the service.

Carry out a procurement exercise in regards to an appropriate dog pound.

SDP 2017/18

Page 14

Page 6



2.0 SERVICE AIMS AND OBJECTIVES
2.1 Introduction

The Plan is intended to inform residents and the business community about the
arrangements Carmarthenshire County Council has in place with regard to the
delivery of Environmental Protection Services.

Environmental Protection Services encompasses food safety, communicable
disease, health and safety, licensing, pollution (including air quality, contaminated
land and noise), nuisances (including noise, odour, smoke etc), anti-social
behaviour, pest control advice and dog warden services. The Local Authority has a
statutory duty to carry out these functions.

The Plan relates to work undertaken by the Environmental Protection Services (and
Business and Consumer Affairs Sections with regard to food standards) from the 1st
April 2017 until 318t March 2018. There is a separate national feed stuffs Service
Delivery Plan. It details how the Teams are managed, organised and how they
operate and includes an analysis of the current costs and challenges facing the
service. It must be highlighted, however, that at the time of writing the plan, the
Division is currently in the process of a re-alignment. The likely outcomes will result
in the following:

e The Environmental Protection Section was formally recognised as
Environmental Health and Licensing Section; Business and Consumer
Affairs was known previously as Trading Standards;

e The Licensing Section will be managed by the Business and Consumer
Affairs Manager;

e The Environmental Protection Section will encompass all food
responsibilities (safety including hygiene, and standards including quality,
composition, labelling, presentation and advertising of food and materials in
contact with food ) ;

e The Environmental Protection Section will be responsible for investigation of
statutory nuisance and anti-social behaviour (tenure neutral) which is
currently liaised with the relevant Housing service.

2.2 Service Aims and Objectives

Environmental Protection Service is one of the main regulatory Sections of the
Council. It aims to:-

(i) promote, provide advice, information, guidance and education on all
matters relevant to Environmental Protection Services,

(i) carry out a range of programmed statutory inspections and other visits
in accordance with relevant legislation, codes of practice and guidance,
including re-inspections and re-sampling or other subsequent action as
necessary, in accordance with the Council’s Enforcement Policies,

SDP 2017/18 Page 7
Page 15



(iif)  ensure that identified breaches of legislation are rectified,

(iv) investigate complaints and notifications as appropriate, in line with
procedures and corporate and procedural time limits, i.e. 1 day for
urgent complaints and up to 10 working days for others.

(v) liaise with the Food Standards Agency, Welsh Government,
Department for Health, Public Health Wales, Public Analysts, Better
Regulation Delivery Office, Natural Resources Wales, the Health and
Safety Executive, Dyfed Powys Police, Mid and West Wales Fire and
Rescue Service, Hywel Dda Local Health Board, the Communicable
Disease Surveillance Centre, Directors of Public Protection Wales, its
Expert Panels and other local authority Task Groups, together with
other appropriate bodies to achieve consistency in enforcement,

(vi)  work collaboratively with other local authorities and agencies where
possible, to provide a consistent, effective and efficient service for
customers,

(vii)  promote the work being carried out by the section with regards to
preventative measures to improve health and wellbeing in
Carmarthenshire. This is to be achieved by working with partners and
seek areas of work where there may be closer collaboration.

(viii) ensure that staff receive regular, appropriate training and are able to
access up-to-date reference material at all times.

(ix)  ensure that food imported/produced/or sold in the UK is safe to eat;

(x) ensure that enforcement is effective, consistent, risk based, and
proportionate and is focussed on improving food standards.

2.3 Links to Corporate Objectives and Plans

At the time of writing the Plan, Carmarthenshire is currently in the process of
consulting on the Public Service Board Wellbeing Plan which should be complete in
March 2018.

Following consultation Carmarthenshire County Council drafted a set of Well-
being/Improvement Objectives and after being approved at County Council on 8th
March 2017. The following are the Well-being Objectives for 2017-18:

1. Help to give every child the best start in life and improve their early life
experiences

2. Help children live healthy lifestyles
3. Continue to improve learner attainment for all

4. Reduce the number of young adults that are Not in Education, Employment or
Training

SDP 2017/18 Page 8
Page 16



5. Tackle poverty by doing all we can to prevent it, help people into work and improve
the lives of those living in poverty

6. Create more jobs and growth throughout the county

7. Increase the availability of rented and affordable homes

8. Help people live healthy lives (tackling risky behaviour and obesity)
9. Support good connections with friends, family and safer communities

10. Support the growing numbers of older people to maintain dignity and
independence in their later years

11. A Council-wide approach to support Ageing Well in the County
12. Look after the environment now and for the future

13. Improve the highway and transport infrastructure and connectivity
14. Promote Welsh Language and Culture

Environmental Protection Services links to these objectives are as follows:-

o providing the statutory regulatory framework for food and health and safety,
public health, pollution control and licensing,

o enforcing no smoking in public places and regulating the use of sunbeds,
tattooing practices, body piercing and skin treatments,

o investigating notifications of communicable disease, food poisoning and
zoonoses (animal health infections),

o Promoting the ‘preventive’ outcome of the work carried out by the service
o implementing the Food Hygiene Rating legislation,
o sampling food, including shellfish to monitor safety and quality,

o Ensure food sold and produced in Carmarthenshire is safe to eat and as
described (including accurate information on allergens),

o Investigating allegations of food fraud, such as illegal slaughter and the illegal
movement of shellfish, and

o ensuring that the safety of the community is maintained, with respect to
licensed premises, gambling, taxi and private hire vehicles, drivers and street
or house to house collections.

SDP 2017/18 Page 9
Page 17



3.0 BACKGROUND
3.1 Profile

Around 185,100 people currently live in Carmarthenshire making it the county with
the 4th highest population in Wales. In line with trends across Wales,
Carmarthenshire has an ageing population with over 40’s accounting for 56% of
the population, and over 65’s for 23%.This trend is set to continue with projections
suggesting that increases in overall Carmarthenshire population to 2021 will be
primarily in the 65+ age group.

The Carmarthenshire population is one of the sparsest in Wales at just 78 people
per km2 who live across a diverse County of both urban and rural communities.
There are three major towns of Llanelli, Carmarthen and Ammanford which are
home to 25% of the population.60% of the population live in rural areas which form
53% of the County geographically according to the Rural Development
Programme definition. The remaining 40% of the total County population all live
within 400m of natural or semi-natural green space.

Carmarthenshire is the third largest County in Wales, covering some 2,365 sq.
kilometres, which represents 11.5% of the total landmass of Wales.

Carmarthenshire is a County of contrasts. The agricultural economy and landscape
of rural Carmarthenshire, right through to the urban and industrial south-eastern
area. The County has over 6,200 registered agricultural holdings managing some
210,500 ha of land, with 1400 of these being over 50ha (125 acres) in size.

Due to its central geographic location, Carmarthen typically serves the needs of the
County’s rural areas. Carmarthenshire has a rich natural and cultural environment,
including sites designated at the international level to protect important biodiversity
features, as well as striking landscapes and distinctive historic towns and villages.
The County also has the highest number of Welsh speakers in Wales, with 78,048
speakers according to the Office of National Statistics and 80% of Welsh speakers
in the County speak Welsh on a daily basis.

3.2 Organisational Structure

Appendix 1 outlines the Political Structure in Carmarthenshire County Council

Appendix 2 outlines the Corporate Strategic Management Structure

SDP 2017/18 Page 10
Page 18



3.3 External Services
The following provide specialist services :-
Food and Agricultural Analysts

Formal and informal feeding stuffs samples are examined by the Public Analyst at
Minton Treharne & Davies , Unit 5, Liwyn yr Eos, Parc Menter, Crosshands.

Food Examiners
Informal samples and faecal testing for communicable disease investigation, is
carried out in the Public Health Wales Laboratory in Carmarthen.

Both of the above are accredited.
3.4 Service Delivery

The service is provided from three centres in the County, at Ammanford, Llanelli and
Carmarthen, which are open from 08:50am to 05:10pm Mondays to Thursdays and
08:50 to 04:30pm on Fridays. Staff can work flexible hours between 07:00am and
07:00pm. As many complaints occur and businesses open only in evenings and
weekends, Officers work flexibly where necessary and will work unsociable hours
on a goodwill basis without paid overtime. However, the moratorium on paid
overtime brings challenges to management of the service and the safety of Officers.
Enforcement visits are carried out outside core hours on a pre-planned basis. Any
emergency response is currently carried out on a goodwill basis.

3.5 Enforcement Policy

The current documented Enforcement Policies are linked to the nationally agreed
Enforcement Concordat. This is currently being reviewed to include the Regulators
Compliance Code which was introduced in Wales last year.

3.6 Cultural and Ethnic Diversity

Translated versions of several business leaflets are available and the Council has
sourced translators which have been used to translate Notices and or letters when
required, at a significant cost.

The Sections’ also implement the Council’'s Welsh Language Policy and provide
Welsh speaking Officers when dealing with service requests.

3.7 Education and Partnership Working

The Teams work closely with Public Health Wales, Local Authorities, Hywel Dda
Local Health Board, Dyfed Powys Police, Mid and West Wales Fire and Rescue
Service etc. This has been illustrated in many of the actions identified from the
Integrated Community Strategy.

SDP 2017/18 Page 11
Page 19



4.0 FOOD SAFETY AND WORKPLACE HEALTH AND SAFETY
Food Safety and standards, Communicable Disease Control, safety and health
4.1 Scope of the Service

The responsibility for enforcing food standards and feeding stuffs legislation, in
addition to other responsibilities, lies with the Business and Consumer Affairs
Section.

The feeding stuffs responsibility is not found within this report as it is included in an
All Wales Service Delivery Plan.

The Environmental Protection Section is based at Carmarthen, Llanelli and
Ammanford and is responsible for enforcing food safety, amongst other wide
ranging responsibilities. The table below indicates the breakdown of FTEs’ for food
hygiene, food standards and health and safety.

The Division is currently in the process of a re-alignment which will result in the food
and feed functions sitting in one team within the Environmental Protection section.

Food Food Food Food Health and | Health and
safety safety* stand”? stand”? Safety** Safety**
2016- 2017/18 2016/17 | 2017/18 2016/17 2017/18
17 FTE (EHP) | FTE FTE FTE FTE (EHP)
FTE* (TSO)
Environmental 0.2 0.2 0.05 0.05
Protection
Manager
Principal 0.7 0.7 0.6 0.6 0.3 0.3
Officer
Senior officers 0.8 0.8 29 0.2 0.2
EHP’S/ TSO’s 7.35 6.95 2.5 1.2 1.2
Technical 0.8 0.8
Assistant -
sampling
Animal Health 0.05 0.05 0 0
Officers
Total 9.9 9.5 3.1 3.5 1.75 1.75
Identified 9.5 5.0 1.75
total in plan

Note - * ‘Food safety’ includes inspection (including implementing the food hygiene rating scheme), advice, sampling,
shellfish monitoring, infectious disease, health improvement,
**’Health and Safety’ includes inspection (and initiatives), advice, accident investigation, and general public health
including the implementation of the smoking, skin treatments and sunbed legislation.

The figures above illustrate the current proportion of Officer resources. It may be
necessary, however, to regularly review the workloads and demands on the service
and re-align the Section to ensure that the demands on the service are delivered
according to priority

SDP 2017/18
Page 20

Page 12



4.2 Demands on the Service and Food Premises Profile

Table 1 shows the number and type of premises in the County. There are 1,986
registered food businesses.

Table 1
Type of business April April 2016 April
2015 2017
Primary Producer 13 8 7
(registered)
Manufacturer/Packer 77 88 84
Importer/Exporter 0 1 0
Distributor/Transporter 6 6 8
Supermarket/Hypermarket 30 31 32
Small Retailer 295 303 301
Retailer/Other 125 129 117
Restaurants and other 342 355 359
caterers
Hotel/Guest House 88 87 81
Pub/Club 306 303 293
Take Away 139 142 146
Caring Premises 145 152 154
School/College 133 136 140
Mobile Food Unit 69 80 82
Restaurant and Caterers — 169 173 182
Other
TOTAL 1937 1994 1986

At the time of writing the report, there are 27 EU Approved businesses in
Carmarthenshire which produce a variety of meat, dairy, fish and egg products.
Some of these businesses only manufacture on a small scale, but the majority
prepare high risk foods with complex and specialised procedures. They supply food
to businesses outside the County on a considerable scale.

Shellfish gathering continues to be a large industry in Carmarthenshire, which
requires regular sampling, monitoring and enforcement. A sampling regime is
essential to maintain / review bed classification and biotoxin monitoring, in order to
permit commercial gathering. This can be a very lucrative business and multi-
agency monitoring is carried out regularly to prevent, where possible, incidents of
food fraud.

In addition to EU Approved premises, the County is also the home to a number of
large non-approved food manufacturers. These include:

o 2 Water Bottling Plants (Spring water and Natural Mineral water) plus an
additional Natural Mineral Water plant, currently being established, and
o 2 large Ice Cream manufacturers.

SDP 2017/18 Page 13
Page 21




SDP 2017/18

Due to the demographic nature of Carmarthenshire, there are approx 5,000 Primary
Producers of food, predominantly falling under the category of dairy, beef or sheep
farms. Of these, approximately 1,000 are considered to be high risk, as they operate
multi-species businesses. In order to comply with the principles of ‘better regulation’,
Animal Health Officers carry out basic inspections and any food safety related
issues are reported back to Environmental Health Practitioners for further action if
necessary.

The level of joint working with the Health and Safety Executive (HSE) has been
considerably reduced as a result of limited HSE resources and the prioritisation of
activities.

Increased partnership working with Public Health Wales particularly in
communicable disease.

Various organisations and businesses use the County for large out-door events and
thematic street markets. These need to be regulated and checked for hygiene,
water supply, refrigeration and basic public health standards.

Officers also look for ethnic products of animal origin and products not of ethnic
origin during their enforcement duties, particularly in wholesale premises and pound
shops.

4.3 Service Delivery

4.3.1 Food Safety Inspections and Education

Premises liable for food safety inspections are risk assessed and the risk
assessment category dictates the frequency and level of inspection they receive.

The inspection programmes for 2017/18 are found in tables below:-

Category Planned Inspections 2017/18
A 1
B 43
C 486
D
E
U

223
310
nrated 21

Total Inspections 1084
FHRS Revisits 45
(estimated)
Estimated revisits

50
FSM projected visits

0
Total visits 95

Inspections are grouped geographically where possible for reasons of economy and
efficiency.

Page 22

Page 14



All food safety high risk premises receive a full inspection/audit in order to attain the
targets set locally and in order to issue a food hygiene rating to the business
(following an unannounced inspection). Low risk premises could be subject to an
inspection or alternative intervention depending on;

1) Whether they are excluded from FHRS or

2) It is the first official control visit following a full programmed inspection which
resulted in the premises being deemed broadly compliant

There is only one National PI for food safety for 2016/17 - the percentage of food
establishments which are ‘broadly compliant with food law.

Deviation from the programmes outlined above, may occur in response to major
food incidents e.g. food poisoning outbreaks, investigation of illegal meat trade;
special projects referred from the Food Standards Agency; new legislation etc.

In order to determine whether a revisit is necessary, consideration will be afforded
to:

1) The number and seriousness of the offences,

2) The willingness of the proprietor to comply,

3) Issues related to public health protection, and

4) Premises awarded a FHR score of 2 or less

The Estimated Resources required to deliver this service is 5.2FTE

4.3.2 Food Standards

All premises that sell, supply or manufacture food are risk assessed in accordance
with the LACORS Risk Rating Scheme. The scheme suggests that all high risk,
together with 50% of medium risk and 20% of low risk businesses should be
inspected annually. The low risk businesses should be subject to a questionnaire
survey.

On the 15t April, the annual programme is set, which includes the name and address
of the premises, the risk category, the due date and the number of interventions
programmed.

All premises are held on APP database and all officers have individual, measurable
intervention targets. APP generates reports on interventions due and completed,
when requested.

This Authority will ensure, as far as practicable, that interventions are carried out in
accordance with this programme. Interventions are applied in a risk based manner
so that more intensive regulation is directed at those businesses that present the
greatest risk.

SDP 2017/18 el5

Page 5?’5



The section will carry out visits/revisits between programmed interventions where

significant contraventions are found or following complaints.

Category Planned
Inspections
2017/18
A — High 39
B — Medium 895
Unrated + low 1052
Total 1986

The Estimated Resources required to deliver this service is 1.6FTE

4.3.3 Primary Producers

The Environmental Health Practitioners (EHP’s) work with Animal Health Officers in
the Trading Standards Services Section to carry out inspections at farms and other
premises identified as Primary Producers. The inspection process uses inspection
forms which are based on the Code of Practice developed for use by Animal Health
Officers and where issues are identified, they are passed to the Environmental
Health Practitioners’ for further action where necessary.

The Estimated Resources required to deliver this service is 0.05FTE

SDP 2017/18

4.3.4 Safety and Health

The recent national guidance relating to enforcement and inspection of workplaces
suggests that only high risk, ie. ‘A’ category premises, should be prioritised in the
planned programme of inspections regime. In addition, local authorities are
encouraged to participate in national and regional health and safety initiatives. The
initiatives are set ‘thematically’ as a result of intelligence led data.

This year, the number of ‘A’ risk premises included in the programme of inspections
is 3.

The section will be continue to inspect and review all the Sports Grounds certificates
within the County.

Page 24

Page 16



The table below outlines the details of the programmed initiatives :-

Regional Number of
or Type of initiative premises Notes
National included
Local Maintaining a Intelligence The premises currently
register of premises led carrying out ear
and persons offering piercing, tattooing and
skin treatments acupuncture are
including piercing, licensed, however the
tattooing, treatments are
micropigmentation becoming more
etc. extensive and currently
we have approximately
The businesses are 80 premises who are
monitored for carrying out treatments
compliance with that would require a
conditions of the licence under this
licence, linked to the byelaw.
adoption of the
byelaws There are also a
considerable number of
Providing fact and treatments which are
information sheets not included within the
for both businesses remit of the byelaws,
and customers. but do pose a risk to
public safety and health
if not monitored.
National Cellar Safety To be Officers to engage with
(Wales) determined pubs, clubs etc with
cellars to promote the
risks of cellars and to
provide
advice/guidance. As a
result of engagement
by our officers with
larger businesses such
as Felinfoel and Brains,
literature is being
circulated more widely.
National Care home safety 10% Assessing compliance
(Wales) equivalent to of issues such as
12 legionella, bedrail
safety, manual
handling, water
systems etc.
SDP 2017/18

Page 5%g

el7



To date, due to pressures associated with the enforcement of food hygiene, no
commitment has been pledged to the undertaking of any of the specified initiatives.

The introduction of the Public Health (Wales) Act will look to regulate and extend
current responsibilities of the section. The first of these is to require persons and
premises to be registered/licensed in order to carry out tattooing and or body
modifications. As indicated above, this section is aware of its businesses through
proactive work and therefore, the implementation of the legislation next year should
be reasonably straight forward. It will, however, provide additional, more effective
tools which may be used where there is found to be non- compliance.

In addition, the Public Health (Wales) Act proposes Regulations to extend the
Smoke Free Premises legislation will require Local Authority Officers to enforce no
smoking in a wider public attendance remit. This does provide an addition challenge
to the section as there are no resources to support its implementation. It is the
intention that initially the section will support the introduction by means of general
publicity and working with educational services to focus on concerns with parents in
vehicles outside schools etc. Officers will also work with the Leisure section (and
schools) to support smoke free playgrounds.

The Estimated Resources required to deliver this service is 1.35FTE

4.3.5 Food Hygiene, Safety and Standards Service Requests

Service requests that are recorded on the data base systems, include food and
premises advice, complaints and legislation queries, etc. Officers no longer visit
businesses pre-opening to offer setting up advice. Individuals are signposted to
advice and information on the website, however, the section is considering offering
onsite, tailored advisory basis at a cost later in the year.

A further example of service requests include notification from Dwr Cymru/Welsh
Water of potential water disconnections has an impact on food safety and standards,
together with workplace health and safety. Where businesses providing high risk
foods are threatened by disconnection, the businesses are contacted or visited to
ensure that the water supply remains constant during operation or if the
disconnection proceeds, that the businesses does not trade until such time as the
supply is reconnected.

Food Standards complaints and requests for service are handled in accordance with
the Quality Manual and Food Law Code of Practice. The manner of recording such
requests have improved over the past year thereby providing a more accurate
picture on the demand; there is a steady increase in the number of service requests
year on year. The nature of this work varies greatly from simple advice to complex
manufacturing/labelling enquiries to criminal investigations — as a result officers’
time can be taken up in grossly different amounts.

SDP 2017/18 Page 18
Page 26



2009/ | 2010/11 | 2011/12 | 2012/13 | 2013/14 | 2014/15 | 2015/16 | 2016/17
10
Service 491 507 574 538 667 741 878 1219
Requests
Food 97 62 66 69 84 102 65 278
Standards
Service
Requests/
Complaint

The Estimated Resources required to deliver this service is 0.5FTE (EHO) and 1 FTE
(TSO)

4.3.6 Home Authority Principle and Primary Authority

The Council does not act as a Primary Authority nor is it a Home Authority for any
food business in the area. Carmarthenshire is however, classified as an originating
authority for approximately 77 manufacturers, thus being the initial point of contact
for any food complaints arising outside the authority in relation to such products.
The section is currently exploring the possibility of becoming Primary Authority for
businesses within Carmarthen. It is anticipated that this will be progressed
significantly by the end of the financial year.

4.3.7 Advice to Businesses

Officers provide information during the inspection process. Information packs are
available for new businesses and the website is currently under review. It is
anticipated that information for consumers and traders will be available, with links to
other sources of information from which advice can be obtained free of charge. The
service is looking to provide a more comprehensive advisory and training
opportunity which could not only assist businesses who are currently requesting
assistance but also provide an income.

The Estimated Resources required to deliver this service is included in the FTE for
inspections (4.3)

4.3.8 Food Sampling

Food sampling programmes are developed annually in response to perceived local
needs and problems. The hygiene sampling follows the Welsh Food Microbiological
Forum Sampling Programme and this year it will focus on sampling local producers,
manufacturers and retailers as part of these surveys. It is anticipated that the
Section will procure 120 samples during the year.

SDP 2017/18 P%ge 19
Page 2



Shellfish sampling is carried out on a rolling programme, to ensure the continual
classification of beds for commercial gathering. In light of the fact that Welsh
Government is intending to open the Three Rivers for Commercial Gathering, there
may be a requirement for the section to carry out more sampling on a monthly basis.
At the time of writing the report, this is to be confirmed. The Section must have the
capacity to retrieve 96 toxin and bacterial flesh samples and 36 water samples
throughout the year. Itis anticipated however that the number may fluctuate pending
quality results, incident occurrence, this may result in approximately 120 flesh
samples and 48 water samples. Additionally, Welsh Government has confirmed that
there is an intention to open additional beds which may increase the sample
demand. The resources required to increase in number is also affected by the
geography, access and the tidal periods. The team are working on the premise that
there will be additional resources sought should this request to increase the
sampling programme be extended.

The Estimated Resources required to deliver this service is 0.5FTE

4.3.9 Food Standards Sampling Programme 2016-2017

On 18t April an annual sampling programme for composition and labelling
parameters is set (see details below) with consideration to National Sampling
Priorities and consultation with the Public Analyst and regional food/feed groups, in
accordance with operating procedure OP005. During the consultation, the section
will identify sampling priorities and then prepare and publish a chemical food
sampling policy (OP005) and make it available to businesses and consumers.

There is a £30,000 sampling budget plus FSA regional bid. The Service will aim to
target 50 high-risk premises, each to be sampled dependant on the nature of their
product.

As the sampling programme is set out with considerable thought and planning and
targeted to known problematical sectors of the food business, the results obtained
from this sampling generates vast amounts of work for officers. High instances of
failures generates advisory, cautionary or investigatory work with further sampling to
validate corrective actions/compliance.

Other routine sampling will take into account problem areas identified last year along
with the sampling priorities for 2017-2018 laid down by the FSA.

Previous years have demonstrated that the extensive sampling programme and the
outcomes are such that the capacity is unable to achieve the intended programme.
Hence this has been recognised in the required FTE and the available capacity.

SDP 2017/18 Page 20
Page 28



Date Product Formal / Informal Number of samples
Apr-17 Chinese Informal 38
May-17 Non-pp Sandwich shops Informal 10
May-17 Pre-packed sandwiches (QUID) | Informal 10
Jun-17 Alcohol Formal 60
Jul-17 Indian takeaway Formal 20
Aug-17 Honey Informal 10
Sep-17 Cakes Informal 20
Dec-17 Bottles from micro-breweries Informal 12
Mince Meat - hospital Informal 2
Mince Meat - Schools Informal 4
Mince Meat - CCC care homes | Informal 4
High Risk 39
Fitness foods
Overall totals: 229

The Estimated Resources required to deliver this service is 1.5FTE

SDP 2017/18

4.3.10 Control and Investigation of Outbreaks and Food Related Infectious Disease

This year, the section have been utilising a multi agency electronic web portal for
recording and notification of cases. The system is called TARIAN. The system also
sets response times thereby making the approach to investigation of notifiable
diseases consistent throughout Wales. There have been teething problems
including double handling of information and difficulty in cross referencing
information, however, it is anticipated that these issues will be resolved within time.
All cases of food poisoning or suspected food poisoning are investigated and
contact is made in person, by telephone or by letter. The Council participates in all
Wales Enhanced Surveillance Projects, currently for individual cases of Lymes
Disease.

All outbreaks are investigated on the same day as the notification is received.
All outbreaks to date have a viral origin.
The County also has a high prevalence of zoonotic disease, primarily TB in food

animals. The Section has duty to ensure that any milk produced from affected dairy
farms is pasteurised.

Page 29

Page 21



Notification 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016
Type
Campylobacter 194 267 182 193 319 233 240
Salmonella 20 12 7 18 18 22 15
E Coli 5 9 5 9 3 5 3
Cryptosporidium 21 15 24 18 29 32 25
Giardiasis 8 6 5 12 9 14 7
Other 19 17 0 13 15 30
Food Poisoning
Clostridium 1 2 0 4 3 5 11
Listeria 1 1 0 0 1 0 1
Shigella 0 2 0 3 0 0
Legionnaire’s 0 1 8 4 0 1 3
Disease
Typhoid Fever 0 0 1 0 0 0 0
TOTAL 269 332 232 258 398 324 335

The Estimated Resources required to deliver this service is 1.4FTE

4.3.11 Food Incidents

All Officers are notified of food incidents electronically. Action is taken in accordance
with the hazard warning category and on the basis of additional advice given in the

warning.

Food standards incidents and alerts will be dealt with in accordance with operating
procedure OP002

Allegations of food fraud will instigate investigations as necessary. Any intelligence
received is reported to the Food Fraud Co-ordination Unit.

The Estimated Resources required to deliver this service is 1FTE

SDP 2017/18

Page 30

Page 22



4.3.12 Accident Investigations

Notifiable accidents which occur in workplaces regulated by the Council must be
reported to the local authority or the Health and Safety Executive by the responsible
person in charge of the premises. The Section has developed a procedure for
dealing with those notifications and they are investigated in accordance with the
revised LAC 22/13 circular. The number of workplace accidents reported and
investigated has therefore reduced.

Nos of accidents reported

2007/8 110
2008/9 100
2009/10 117
2010/11 146
2011/12 126
2012/13 75
2013/14 61

2014/15 86

2015/16 78
2016/17 89

The Estimated Resources required to deliver this service is O.4FTE

4.3.13 Liaison

The Public Protection Division has in place arrangements to ensure that
enforcement action is consistent with those of neighbouring local authorities and is
represented on the following groups;

e Directors of Public Protection Wales Expert Panels and Task Groups dealing

with Food Safety, Communicable Disease and Health and Safety,

e South Wales Shellfish Liaison Group

e Mid and West Wales regional Food/Feed Panel and

e All Wales Welsh Heads of Trading Standards Food/Feed Panel.

The Service has good working relationships with the Centre for Environment,
Fisheries and Aquaculture Science (CEFAS) and Welsh Government’s Fisheries
Unit, together with Public Health Wales.

There is a good working relationship with the Health and Safety Executive and other
local authorities. It also works closely with Dyfed Powys Police, the Mid and West
Wales Fire and Rescue Service and the Welsh Ambulance Service particularly with
regards to the Safety Advisory Groups for events and Sports Grounds.

The Estimated Resources required to deliver this service is 0.5FTE

SDP 2017/18 Page 23
Page 31



4.3.14 Food Safety and Standards Promotion

The section proposes to engage with businesses and Public Health Wales to
promote more healthy menus to attempt to tackle obesity issues within
Carmarthenshire. With the proposed Project Officer for food provision within the
Communities Department, it is proposed that there will be engagement to pilot
health eating options. It is the intention that this can be extended to other businesses
and manufacturers within Carmarthenshire in the near future.

Extending the education initiatives will focus on addressing issues identified during
last year’s interventions, including educating FBOs in relation to allergen information
and use of colours banned in certain foods. Enforcement action will be considered,
where necessary, in accordance with the authority’s Enforcement Policy.

Providing guidance and raising awareness of food safety to the public and
businesses to ensure compliance with food law. This is achieved through leaflets,
press releases, seminars, display stands and training as resources permit.

The section are discussing with businesses in the County with the prospect of
entering into Primary Authority Agreements.

4.3.15 Food Safety Week

The Section will be participating in Food Safety Week this year which will focus on
the theme of ‘Don’t wash your raw chicken’ which help consumers re-assess their
existing food safety behaviours in their own home kitchens. Promotional material
will be placed in the Customer Service Centres throughout the Council and in the
foyer of a very busy supermarket at Crosshands.

4.3.16 Christmas Safe Cooking and Safe BBQ Cooking Information

The Section provides information to the public and caterers regarding the safe
storage and cooking of poultry in the run up to Christmas each year and by offering
leaflets to butchers for display and to offer to customers.

4.3.17 Butchers Project

Interventions from last year highlighted some non-compliances with food standards
legislation in the butchery sector. The Trading Standards Team will undertake an
education project to address outstanding issues.

4.3.18 Colours and allergens

Promotional project to raise awareness of issues relating to colours and allergens
in food aimed at residents and businesses. This is to be arranged by Trading
Standards in conjunction with the authority’s press and communications team.

The Estimated Resources required to deliver this service is 0.2FTE (EHP) and ‘ ‘
0.4FTE (TSO)

SDP 2017/18 Page 24
Page 32



SECTION 4

5.0 LICENSING

5.1 Scope of the Service

The Licensing Team is based in Carmarthen and is responsible for providing advice,
processing and enforcing authorisations issued under the Licensing and Gambling
Acts, Hackney Carriages and Private Hire Vehicles, drivers and operators, Street

and House to House Collections and Street Traders

The table below indicates the breakdown of FTEs’ on various functions identified

above for Licensing.

Licensing FTE April 2017

Head of Public Protection*

Public Health Services Manager 0.2
Principal Officer 1.0
Senior Officer 1.0
Licensing Officer 4.0
Licensing Assistant 2.0

TOTAL 8.2

5.2 Demands on the Service

5.2.1 Profile of Licences

Table 1 shows the number and type of Licenses as of April 2017 :-

Type of Licence

No. April
2014

No. April
2015

No. April
2016

No. April
2017

Licensing Act*

881
premises
licences

83 Club
Premises
Certificates

2,236
Personal
Licences

433
Temporary
Event

Notices
(2013/14)

878

82

2221

414

873

79

2317

390

872

74

2493

367

SDP 2017/18

Page ¥

e 25




Gambling Act* 26 25 25 25
Premises
Licenses
(ex permits)
324 Non 313 Non
Commercial Eo&nmermal 305 Non 306 Non
Lottery otery Commercial Commercial
43 Permits 54 Permits Lottery Lottery
249 Alcohol 253 Alcohol 58 Permits 56 Permits
Licensed Licensed
Premises Premises 180 Alcohol 181 Alcohol
Automatic Automatic Licensed Licensed
entitlement entitlement Premises Premises
Permits Permits Automatic Automatic
entitlement entitlement
Permits Permits
Taxi/private Hire 560 569 582 622
Drivers**
Taxi/private Hire 432 472 448 492
Vehicles™™
Taxi/private Hire 36 39 38 35
Operators™*
Street traders 14 37 53 49
during during during
the the the
year year year
House to 68 62 42 49
House*** during during during
the the the
year year year
Street 135 94 98 109
Collections during during during
the the the
year year year
TOTAL 5,520 5,520 5,420 5,730

*prescribed fees
**discretionary fees
***no fees

The legislation regarding alcohol and regulating entertainment is constantly evolving
in order to deregulate. This is challenging for license holders and enforcement
agencies to maintain.

SDP 2017/18 Page 26
Page 34



The Environmental Protection Manager leads a multi agency group, the Safety
Advisory Group which assesses large events and it consists of representatives other
partner agencies, eg. Police, Fire and Rescue Service, Ambulance Service and the
Local Health Board, together with Officers of other Departments of the Council. As
a result of this pattern of working, the Team has developed good working
relationships with the partner agencies, as well as with applicants and licence
holders. The introduction of the Deregulation Act as well as other changes to the
Licensing Act has resulted in a relaxation of licensing requirements for regulated
entertainment at certain locations and events including Local Authority premises. As
a result, to ensure safety, the licensing section work alongside event organisers
including the Leisure Division of the Authority to establish a Safety Advisory Group
as necessary.

The section is working collaboratively with the corporate Safeguarding team, school
transport section and the Police to run safeguarding awareness courses for licensed
drivers within the Authority. The intention is to share the training with neighbouring
authorities within the Dyfed Powys areas.

The legislation used in the enforcement of licensed vehicles and drivers is currently
being reviewed. The Deregulation Act is now in place. It has removed the
requirement for personal licenses to be renewed which has had an implication on
income for the team. The legislation has also introduced the increase in length of
drivers and operators licenses. He section has, however, offered applicants
opportunity to retain the current licensing process or to apply for longer licenses. To
date, the applicants are choosing the current process. Additionally, the Law
Commission Report has been published and is awaiting Parliamentary approval.
This report if approved will result in the repeal of much of the existing legislation and
will provide a single legislative framework to regulate both taxi and private hire
services.

The Section has established a Licensing Action Group which is made up of
representatives from the Responsible Authorities which meet regularly to
target/highlight problem/higher risk premises and agree joint actions to tackle
issues.

There is concern about the impact of validation on the income stream of the
Licensing budget. The vast maijority of licensing fees and charges are prescribed
and cannot be amended, except by Central or Regional Government. In addition to
this, the implementation of the Deregulation Act has resulted in approximately 1,000
personal licences not requiring renewal. Year on year validation produces an
additional efficiency saving that the Public Protection Division has to find. Fees and
charges have become overstated and the income projections are in a position where
they are not realised. Locally set fees were reviewed through the year and will be
reviewed year on year utilising the All Wales Fees toolkit. The section are also
currently participating in a survey for the Local Government Association to assess
the costs for Local Authorities in processing and compliance checks for those
applicable to Licensing Act. It is anticipated that this may be collated to request for
an increase in Licence prescribed fees or to introduce locally set fees for such
licenses.

SDP 2017/18 e27

Page :g:%g



5.3 Service Delivery

5.3.1 Inspection, Education and Enforcement

Officers are responsible for processing licensing applications, offering advice to
applicants as well as members of the public who are concerned about applications
or activities and they also undertake compliance/enforcement exercises to ensure
that relevant legislation and conditions where applicable, are complied with.
Enforcement is conducted during normal working hours, however, there are
occasions when it is more appropriate to conduct enforcement out of hours often
with the Police or other agencies frequently during the busier periods in the night
time economy.

Officers provide information during inspections, during telephone calls and also to
personal applicants or complainants at the Carmarthen Customer Service Centre.
The website is currently under review and it is anticipated that information to both
consumer and traders will be available with links to other sources of information,
from which advice can be obtained free of charge.

The Estimated Resources required to deliver this service is 7.2FTE |
5.3.2 Liaison
The Council ensures that enforcement action is consistent with those of
neighbouring local authorities and is represented on the Directors of Public
Protection Wales Licensing Expert Panel and the Institute of Licensing Group. There
is also a Liaison Group linking the four Counties’ of Carmarthenshire,
Pembrokeshire, Ceredigion and Powys, as well as the Dyfed Powys Police.

The Estimated Resources required to deliver this service is 0.5FTE

5.3.3 Licensing Promotion

The section are working closely with the press office to promote safety for example
unlicensed taxis, correct management for running events, responsible drinking
messages etc.

The Estimated Resources required to deliver this service is 0.5FTE |

SDP 2017/18 Page 28
Page 36



SECTION 6

6.0 POLLUTION
6.1 Scope of the Service

The Pollution Team is based in Ammanford and works County-wide, but the Officers
do work from the Llanelli and Carmarthen offices, as and when required. The
proactive responsibilities include monitoring and enforcing a wide range of
regulatory controls dealing with noise, air quality and contaminated land issues. The
reactive services include dealing with nuisances such as noise.

The table below indicates the breakdown of FTEs’ involved in Pollution work :-

Pollution Team FTEs’
April 2016

Head of Public Protection*

Public Health Services Manager 0.20

Principal Officer 1.00

Environmental Health 4.60

Practitioners*

Scientific Officers 1.00
Total 6.80

* As part of efficiency savings, the team was re-aligned and the Division now shares the Head of Housing (now Head of
Housing and Public Protection)

6.2 Demands on the Service

All functions are statutory. Officers handle high and often complex caseloads which
can, at times, exert pressures on other service delivery areas and on the Team as
a whole. The team deal with both reactive and proactive work. With regards to the
proactive, this can be programmed over the year, however, the reactive can, at
times, be a real challenge for the team with regards to demand and complexity.

6.3 Service Delivery

6.3.1 Noise (prevention)

Responding to planning consultations forms a considerable proportion of the work
of the Team. The noise assessment process is complex and extremely time
consuming, involving work at the pre-application stage as well as during the formal
Planning Consultation.

The team responded to 198 planning consultations during 2016/17 (compared to
204 the previous year), 58 pre-planning consultations and 6 scoping opinions. In
order to improve the efficiency of the consultation process, the section has
developed a comprehensive guide for applicants identifying what is required from
Environmental Health and Licensing Services in order to assess the application.

SDP 2017/18 P%ge 29
Page 3



Additionally, the Section has developed a guide for complaints about wind turbines
that are in situ. Following a process review within the Development Management
Team, there is now a greater emphasis being placed on pre-application engagement
with developers. This places a greater burden on the Pollution and Public Health
Teams in that additional liaison with developers must take place to ensure that all
information is present and satisfactory prior to an application for Planning Consent
being submitted. A code had been created to allow the additional work generated to
be accounted for on the Divisions Data Management system. A guidance document
has also been produced to outline the requirements of noise impacts from
development.

The Estimated Resources required to deliver this service is 2FTE

6.3.2 Noise (reactive)

The Team deals with service complaints relating to noise from a wide range of
sources, including those from a domestic, commercial and industrial setting.
2016/17 saw some highly complex, sensitive and long standing noise complaints
being dealt with which involved multi-national companies. Work with these will
continue into 2017/18, together with any similar issues that arise. There continues
to be a high demand for service requests and with the advent of the new powers
contained within the Antisocial Behaviour, Crime and Policing Act 2014, it is likely
that figures for 2017/18 may increase. The Section has invested heavily in noise
monitoring equipment and Officers are often required to work unsociable hours in
order to witness and assess noise disturbances as part of the investigation process.

A substantial number of noise service requests relate to Council Owned homes and
many of these include an element of Anti Social Behaviour. Where Noise is an issue,
Officers take a lead in assessing the impact of activities on nearby residents and the
Community as a whole. There are new provisions contained within the Antisocial
Behaviour, Crime & Policing Act 2014 that can be used to deal with such issues,
along with those already contained in the Environmental Protection Act 1990. This
will require close working with Housing Colleagues and the Police to resolve issues.
It is also the intention of the Team to work more closely with Tenants with the aim
of raising noise awareness and preventing problems from occurring in the first place
if possible.

Service Requests received

Types of Service 2014/15 2015/16 2016/17
Requests

Noise 899 766 856

Planning applications 156 204 196

Pre-application 58

consultations

TENS 414 405 383

Premises licence 76 88 88

application consultation (29 (42 (23
new) new) new)

SDP 2017/18
Page 38

Page 30



The Team continues to deal with issues of Anti-Social Behaviour, and is actively
involved with the Area Anti Social behaviour Problem Solving Groups, which is a
multi agency forum. The Anti Social Behaviour, Crime and Policing Act 2014 has
been introduced and is likely to have an impact on the way in which the officers
work, and expands the issues they may be able to deal with.

The current Licensing legislation has had an impact on the work of the Team,
especially as Environmental Health Practitioners have a role as a Responsible
Authority in respect of Temporary Event Notices, in providing responses and
assessments in relation to noise, public safety and nuisance. The team received
383 TEN consultations in 2016/17 (405 in 2015/16), and 88 consultations relating to
Premise Licenses (88 in 2015/16), 23 of which related to new applications (42 in
2015/16). In addition to this, officers are consulted on events that are held on Council
owned land, even if the event does not fall within the remit of the Licensing Act 2003.

Officers also provide expertise in relation to noise and public safety at Safety
Advisory Groups for large scale events. The officers from this team and Licensing
team have produced a document to assist organisers in setting up a management
plan for events to take into account issues such as impact by noise, public health
and licensing. Currently, they will also offer advice on a case by case basis. The
section also, in liaison with Licensing, respond to any issues arising from the Police’s
Weekly Incident List.

The Estimated Resources required to deliver this service is 2.8FTE

6.3.3 Air Quality

The Air Quality Management Area (AQMA) declared for Llandeilo in November 2011
continues to progress. The Action Plan to improve air quality in the town has been
implemented, and a review of the effectiveness of the first year of phase 1 of the
plan has been reported to the Action Planning Group and Welsh Government.
2016/17 saw the implementation of year 2 of the Action Plan and monitoring of
Nitrogen Dioxide will continue. The effectiveness of measures during year 2 will be
reported on during 2017/18

Two further Air Quality Management Areas were declared in 2016/17; one in
Carmarthen and the other in Llanelli. As a result, this will require consultation and
collaborative work to produce action plans this year for each area. Close
collaboration with colleagues in the Transport & Engineering Division Service and
Planning Services will continue throughout the process.

Additionally, data will continually be gathered. The section have taken an
opportunity to work alongside Swansea University who will be looking to undertake
the health impact assessment in conjunction with this sections work in reducing the
levels of pollution. The section are also proposing to link in with local Eco —schools
coordinator in the management areas to attempt to engage with the school and
school pupils to raise awareness of poor air quality and to instigate change in school
journey behaviours.

Local screening assessments of air quality will continue throughout the County, with
detailed assessments undertaken in areas which are near or exceed the EU
intervention level for NO2in the atmosphere.

SDP 2017/18 Page 31
Page 39



Every three years, the Council is required to submit a comprehensive Updating and
Screening Assessment (USA) of Air Quality report to Welsh Government and the
last report was submitted in 2015. Progress reports are submitted in the intervening
years, and one was submitted in 2016-17.

The Estimated Resources required to deliver this service is 1FTE

6.3.4 Environmental Permitting

Legislation requires the Council to manage certain industrial processes that have
the potential to pollute the atmosphere and they include petrol stations, dry cleaners,
timber processing plants, cement batching and pet food manufacture, for example.
At the start of 2017/18 there were 69 processes that benefit from Environmental
Permits. Some of the processes are very complicated and require a degree of
specific knowledge and understanding of the operation to ensure that they are
operating within conditions attached to the Environmental Permit. In 2017-18,
Permit holders will receive an inspection as determined by DEFRA’s risk rating
scheme and they are required to pay an annual fee, which is prescribed by Welsh
Government. The validation of these fees during the budget process produces a
considerable extra efficiency saving that the Public Protection Division has to find,
as does the reduction in the number of the installations that require a Permit.

The Estimated Resources required to deliver this service is 0.4FTE

6.3.5 Land Contamination

The Division has previously identified areas of land within Carmarthenshire that
have potential for ground contamination to exist, mainly as a legacy of it's industrial
heritage. The legislation regulating contaminated land has not changed and there
remains an explicit duty conferred on local authorities to inspect land with a view to
determining whether or not it is classed as contaminated land. The Contaminated
Land Inspection Strategy was reviewed and approved during 2015 as a result of
updated statutory guidance. This reflects the current proactive approach following
the withdrawal of Welsh Government Capital Funding with the emphasis being to
remediate potentially Contaminated Land through the Development Management
and Regeneration processes and working with landowners / developers. 2016-17
will continue with this approach and will also identify Council owned land that may
require investigation.

As with other service areas, the option of charging for some areas of this work, e.g.
property searches may be explored.

The Estimated Resources required to deliver this service is 0.6FTE

SDP 2017/18 Page 32
Page 40



7.0 PUBLIC HEALTH

7.1 Scope of the Service

The Public Health Team is based County-wide with Officers working from the
Ammanford, Llanelli and Carmarthen offices, as and when required. The proactive
responsibilities include monitoring and enforcing a wide range of regulatory controls
dealing drinking and bathing water quality monitoring, shellfish monitoring, good dog
ownership etc. The reactive services include dealing with nuisances, such as
odours, smoke, dust and light, as well as from poor conditions of properties resulting
in concerns from neighbours, e.g. animal waste / waste accumulations. The section
also provide an enforcement and advisory service for pest control.

The table below indicates the breakdown of FTEs’ involved in Public Health work :-

Pollution Team FTEs’
April 2017

Public Health Services Manager 0.20

Principal Officer 1.00

Environmental Health 2.00

Practitioners

Technical Officers 2.00

Technical Assistant/Dog Warden 4.00
Total 9.20

* As part of efficiency savings, the team was re-aligned and the Division now shares the Head of Housing (now Head of
Housing and Public Protection)

7.2 Demands on the Service

Most functions are statutory. Officers handle high and often complex caseloads
which can, at times, exert pressures on other service delivery areas and on the
Team as a whole. The team deal with both reactive and proactive work. With regards
to the proactive, this can be programmed over the year, however, the reactive can,
at times, be a real challenge for the team with regards to demand and complexity.

Further legislation has been introduced including the requirement for microchipping
of dogs, Anti Social Behaviour legislation to help with dogs behaving dangerously
on private land, and there are also future requirements for testing for Radon in
drinking water being introduced later this year. In addition to this, the Section is
expected to carry out additional shellfish sampling as a result of the opening of
additional commercial beds.

In order to attempt to meet the challenges, the Technical Assistants and the Dog
Wardens combined in September 2016 in an attempt to provide flexible cover across
the County and help efficiency for dealing with complaints. Officers now deal with
both pest control requests and dog warden duties with dual purpose vehicles.

SDP 2017/18 Page 33
Page 41



7.3 Service Delivery

7.3.1 Prevention work

Responding to Planning applications forms a considerable proportion of work within
the team. Certain applications require input from the section in order to consider and
prevent future nuisances. Some of the applications are quite complex and require
careful consideration and discussions with the applicant and Planning. The numbers
of the application responses have increase over the last couple of years:

2014/5 2015/6 2016/17
No of Planning
applications 35 86 196 (based
responded to on all
planning

consultations
requiring a
response.)

7.3.1 Statutory Nuisance

The Team receives over 3,600 service requests last financial year (an increase of
400 from the previous year) and many of these requests relate to statutory nuisance.
Where the investigation of a complaint reveals that action is required, the Officer will
attempt to resolve the issue through advice or mediation, but where this is
unsuccessful, a Notice will be served. A total of 22 Statutory notices were served in
2015/6, an increase of 7 from the previous year.

Any works or actions necessary to abate or remedy the statutory nuisance will be
monitored and if there is non-compliance, legal proceedings will be instituted or
works undertaken in default. In cases of accumulations of waste on land, the Section
will take action against landowners and occupiers to require its removal, if the
person(s) responsible cannot be found. Works undertaken in default of any Notice
will have an impact on budgets, as some costs for works may not be recoverable.
The Teams’ capacity will have to be reviewed throughout the year and an
assessment made on the impact on resources.

High numbers of fly tipping cases are reported on private land, and these cases
require high amounts of time for investigation including finding evidence to identify
the offender etc. The number of reports for fly tipping in 2014/5 was 209. This was
reduced to 174 in 2015/6 but increased again to 256 in 2016/7. This has placed
more work on officers with additional CCTV work and investigations to try and
identify perpetrators.

SDP 2017/18 Page 34
Page 42



Service Requests received

Types of Service 2013/14 2014/15 2015/16 2016/17
Requests
Public Health 2026 2197 2139 2149

SDP 2017/18

Urgent complaints or conditions that present a threat to life, eg. carbon monoxide
poisoning incidents will be responded to on the same working day.

The Team continues to deal with issues of Anti-Social Behaviour, and is actively
involved with the Anti Social multi agency working groups. The Anti Social
Behaviour, Crime and Policing Act has been introduced and may have an impact on
the way in which the officers work. This has introduced new powers that can be used
in addition to/ where current legislation is not suitable. An example of the latter may
be dogs that are not kept under control and officers have already used these powers
successfully with Community Protection Notices and Fixed Penalty Notices to
resolve nuisance dogs.

There is also a significant number of Housing stock related complaints being dealt
with. The process of hand over of such complaints to the pollution and public health
teams has been reviewed to ensure an efficient and consistent approach, and
appears to be working well.

Officers are currently working on approximately 370 cases each annually. Should
there be any longer term vacancies, this will have a big impact on workloads and
service delivery.

The Estimated Resources required to deliver this service is 4FTE

7.3.2 Water quality

There are approximately 2,356 private drinking water supplies in the County, the
majority supplying single domestic properties. Officers will only sample drinking
water at these premises, if requested to do so by the owner or if Officers are
investigating a public health issue.

Under the Private Water Supply (Wales) Regulations 2010, there are currently 59
large or commercial supplies, and 10 small supplies (shared source). There are
2,065 single domestic properties that could require monitoring.

In addition to the above, EU legislation requires Local Authorities to carry out
sampling for private waters to include tests for presence of radon. There are areas
in Carmarthenshire where radon is prevalent. Work has already been carried out
and to date there have been approximately 30 supplies identified which will require
further investigations within the County. It is as yet unclear, but the requirement may
require additional sampling at the cost of the Local Authority.

Page Eia%g

e 35



The Team will work closely with Dwr Cymru to ensure that water supplies for large
events are fit for purpose and present no public health risk.

The Estimated Resources required to deliver this service is 0.6FTE

7.3.3 Bathing Water

Natural Resources Wales has responsibility for the two EU designated bathing
beaches at Pembrey and Pendine. Officers of the Public Health Team sample
bathing water at Burry Port beach, which is a non-designated bathing water, under
EU legislation. Bathing water quality is sampled weekly between May and
September of each year which is the bathing season. North Dock in Llanelli, will
also be sampled monthly throughout the year, as it is used for recreational purposes.
As a result of a motion carried by Council at the beginning of the financial year, the
sampling programme for monitoring waters used for bathing will be reviewed this
year.

Officers also monitor for blue green algae in water which is accessible for members
of public. Where there is evidence of contaminants, officers will work alongside
owners/responsible persons to prevent, where possible, any public health issues.

The Estimated Resources required to deliver this service is 0.2 FTE

7.3.4 Pests

The team’s Technical Assistants cover both pest control and dog warden duties. In
relation to the pest control side of the work the section has been providing advice to
treat for pests, prevention access/harbourage for pests and surveys of drainage to
identify, where possible, areas of damage leading to points of access and remedial
work required. The numbers reports and areas are monitored annually.

Types of Service 2013/14 2014/15 2015/16 2016/17
Requests
Pest control 334 527 448 623

SDP 2017/18

In cases where there are no improvements in the situation i.e. advice has not been
implemented and there is still a pest problem, the team will undertake enforcement.
A total of 42 notices were served in 2016/7 compared with 46 in 2015/16.

As a result of feedback from the public, evidence seen during investigations and
closer working with other Divisions, such as Housing and Leisure, the section has
introduced a monitoring and treatment service to Local Authority premises (where
agreed). This will be carried out at an agreed cost. However the provision of advice
only at this stage will still be free. It is intended that this will provide a faster, more
effective service to the tenants. This will be monitored to ensure that there is
adequate capacity to implement this and also consideration on whether to expand
the service.

Page 44

Page 36



7.3.5 Dog Warden

In relation to the dog warden duties, the team operates County-wide and covers the
collection of stray dogs and provides a response to irresponsible dog ownership.

Types of Service 2013/14 2014/15 2015/16 2016/17
Requests
Dog Warden 1093 969 884 814

SDP 2017/18

Approximately 890 stray dogs were dealt with by the dog warden service last year
with some being impounded and some being returned to their owners where known.
The service has continued to hold a number of free dog identity micro-chipping
events in various parts of the County which proved to be very successful. Legislation
requiring all dogs to be micro chipped is being implemented in Wales this year. It is
anticipated that non compliance could result in maximum fines of up to £500.

In addition to this, the section relating to dogs in the Anti Social Behaviour, Crime
and Policing Act was implemented last year. Part of the legislation is likely to have
an impact on enforcing complaints about dogs behaving dangerously on private
land. This is likely to result in an increase in demand on the officers.

In light of the fact that there was no additional funding to implement either of the
above pieces of legislation, there are no plans currently to carrying out enforcement
work to identify owners that have not chipped their dogs and we will monitor the
workloads and demands on the latter.

The Estimated Resources required to deliver this service is 4 FTE

7.3.6 Scrap Dealers Registration

The Public Protection Division has been working closely with Dyfed Powys Police
to register applicants upon application under the Scrap Dealers Act on identifying
scrap dealers across the County, to help reduce the levels of metal crime.

To date, 29 collectors have been licensed. In addition to this, there are currently 5
scrap yards, which includes motor salvage operators.

The requirement to register is currently being promoted through scrap yards and the
press, and anyone caught trading without the necessary registration will be
prosecuted.

The Estimated Resources required to deliver this service is 0.2 FTE

Page E%g

e 37



7.3.7 Advice to Businesses and Customers

Officers provide information during inspections, during telephone calls and also to
personal complainants at the County’s Customer Service Centres’. The website is
currently under review and it is anticipated that information to both consumer and
businesses will be available with links to other sources of information, from which
advice can be obtained free of charge.

7.8 Liaison

Enforcement action in relation to pollution control is consistent with those of
neighbouring local authorities and Officers’ represent the Council on the Directors
of Public Protection Wales Expert Panels. These working relationships with
DEFRA, Natural Resources Wales, Welsh Government, Public Health Wales, Dyfed
Powys Police and other departments’ of the Council will continue in 2015-16.

7.1.9 Promotion

Responsible dog ownership.

The service will continue to hold a number of free dog identity microchipping events
in various parts of the County to promote responsible dog ownership. In addition to
this, the team will also extend the promotion to clearing up after their dog.

This will run alongside the enforcement work that may be required with the new legal
requirements for dogs to be chipped

Carbon Monoxide awareness

During colder months, officers will be undertaking proactive monitoring for carbon
monoxide inside properties during visits to investigate other service requests. This
will be carried out by officers wearing personal monitors.

The Estimated Resources required to deliver this service is 0.2 FTE

SDP 2017/18 Page 38
Page 46



SECTION 8

8.0 RESOURCES
8.1 Budget and Staffing Allocation

The staffing level of the Public Health Services Section is described using Full Time
Equivalents (FTEs’) for the various responsibilities of the service and they have
been highlighted in the previous sections of this report.

The budget for food and health and safety is outlined in Appendix 3.

Efficiency savings continue to have a considerable impact on the Service and
staffing is being reduced as a consequence. The Section faces a very challenging
time, as it constantly monitors, reviews and realigns as necessary functions,
services and response times with its resource allocation and the requirement to
implement current legislation.

The validation of budget income year on year continues to be a problem, as the
majority of fees and charges are prescribed and cannot be set by the Council. In
recent years, this has meant that the Public Protection Division has had to find an
increased efficiency saving because of the validation process and a failure by
successive Governments’ to increase prescribed fees. The section is working with
the Division as a whole to address the shortcomings, highlight the reasons and to
attempt to explore other means of income generation.

The Division is exploring various areas for collaborative working with neighbouring
Authorities. In addition, all Teams’ will participate in Expert Panels and Working
Groups to ensure consistency of approach, however, it is unlikely to result in any
significant financial savings.

The Welsh Assembly is in the process of producing the Local Government Bill which
will identify a revised footprint of Authorities in Wales. It is unclear at this stage
whether the ‘Williams Report’ recommendation will form part of the basis, however,
the West Wales and Powys Authorities will continue to work collaboratively where
possible

The National Enforcement Priorities for Wales, as identified by the BDRO, are being
delivered on a regional basis and there are three of relevance to Environmental
Health and Licensing Services :-

o Ensuring the safety and quality of the food chain to minimize risk to human
and animal health,

o Protecting individuals from harm and promoting health improvement, and

o Improving the local environment to positively influence quality of life and
promote sustainability.

The Team will have to work hard and imaginatively in 2015 to minimise the impact
of reducing resources to meet those objectives.

SDP 2017/18 P%ge 39
Page 4



SECTION 9

9.0 QUALITY ASSESSMENT
9.1 Consistency

Senior Officers of the Team attend all Wales Expert Panels and local or regional
Task Group meetings where local and national information is discussed and
exchanged. This is brought back to the Teams and cascaded via Team meetings.
Officers utilise standardised inspection forms and standard paragraphs to ensure
consistency and reviews of documentation and procedures are developed or
implemented through the Team meeting process. Regular monitoring is undertaken
by Principal Environmental Health Practitioners at the fourth management tier level.

The sections will continue to implement ‘challenge sessions’ as part of continuous
improvement.

9.2 Competency of Officers

All Officers that carry out food safety and standards functions must fulfil the statutory
qualification prescribed in the Food Law Code of Practice and they must also hold
Registration Board Membership with the Chartered Institute of Environmental
Health. Officers that carry out food inspections must also undertake a minimum of
10 hours (core) food related training annually, together with 20 hours Continuing
Professional Development (CPD) annually. Officers carrying out noise
assessments hold a post graduate qualification, the Institute of Acoustics Diploma
in Acoustics and Noise Control. Over the last 4 years, the Department has
supported /continues to support 5 officers (holding satisfactory degrees) in
expanding their current knowledge and in developing new skills through the Masters
in Environmental Health distance learning course, which will enable them to become
Environmental Health Practitioners. To date, 4 of the officers have completed the
qualification. This has resulted in the teams offering more flexibility to cover areas
of higher demand. The budget allocation of £10,000 for staff training is shared
between all Officers of the Public Protection Division and individual training needs
are assessed during the ‘Helping People to Perform’ Process.

9.3 Staff Development Plans

The Section implements the Corporate Appraisal Process known as ‘Helping People
to Perform’ and this will continue in 2017/8. The Appraisal Process defines a set of
work objectives for each member of staff which is agreed between the Officer and
his or her line manager. The principles of Investors in People will be applied
throughout the Team in 2017/8.

9.4 Enforcement

All enforcement action is taken in accordance with the Enforcement Concordat,
relevant Enforcement Policies and Procedures, together with the Food Law Code of
Practice. The Enforcement Policy is currently being reviewed to take into account
the Regulators Compliance Code.

SDP 2017/18 Page 40
Page 48



SECTION 10

10.0 REVIEW

10.1 Review

The Service Delivery Plan will be reviewed on an annual basis alongside the
Departmental Business Plan and quarterly Performance Indicators.

An annual report will be produced for the Environmental and Public Protection
Scrutiny Committee at the end of the financial year, which will identify any variances
in performance.

SDP 2017/18 Page 41
Page 49



Appendix 1

POLITICAL DECISION-MAKING STRUCTURE

COUNCIL

Leader -
Deputy Leader -
Deputy Leader -
Education and Children
Resources

Housing

Public Protection
Culture, Sport and Tourism
Environment

Communities and Rural Affairs
Social Care and Health

EXECUTIVE BOARD
Portfolios
Corporate Leadership and Strategy
Council Business Manager, Human Resources, TIC
Performance Management, Training, Wales Audit

SCRUTINY COMMITTEES

OTHER COMMITTEES

Community

Education and Children
Environmental and Public Protection
Social Care and Health

Policy and Resources

Democratic Services Committee
Appeals Committee

Appointments Committee - Directors
Appointments Committee — Heads of Service
Audit Committee

Investigative Committee

Licensing Committee

Licensing Committees’ A, B, and C
Member Appointments Committee
Planning Committee

Standards Committee

Dyfed Pension Fund Committee

SDP 2017/18
Page 50

Page 42




Appendix 2

STRATEGIC MANAGEMENT STRUCTURE

CHIEF EXECUTIVE

DIRECTOR OF COMMUNITIES

HEAD OF HOMES AND
SAFER COMMUNITITES

SDP 2017/18 Page 43
Page 51



Appendix 3(i)

Local Authority Expenditure

The expenditure includes that for food safety, standards and health and safety

3
Actual 2016/17
£

2
Budget 2017/18

£

EMPLOYEE COSTS

Include: basic pay, overtime, employer’s
superannuation, employer’s national
insurance SSP due, pay arrears, other
allowances/payments, car
allowances/payments, car
allowances/mileage/leases/travel expenses
and fares, subsistence, pension increases
and other employee costs.

606,853

597,218

Property costs

SUPPLIES AND SERVICES

Include: computer equipment
(purchase/rental/ maintenance), furniture,
equipment and other tools including
protective clothing, publications, journals,
newspapers and other supplies and services
and contractors.

1,605

2,849

SAMPLING COSTS

Include: purchases made for the purposes of
sampling/testing

1,447

2,600

TRANSPORT AND PLANT
Include: hire of external vehicles

330

2,363

ADMINISTRATION

Include: printing and stationery, telephones,
advertising (recruitment), postages/couriers,
insurance, medical costs, petty outlays,
hospitality and other administration costs

2,984

6,513

TRAINING AND CONFERENCES

Include: training, conferences, membership
fees/subscriptions and exam fees.

13,884

13,429

PAYMENT TO OTHER BODIES

For example, public analyst, test unit, cross-
boundary projects

31,824

28,614

FINANCING CHARGES

Include: central support costs

104,819

104,789

GROSS COSTS (total of all above costs)

763,746

758,375

INCOME

-52,968

-97,443

Appendix 3(ii)

Page 52

44



The Division’s budget for 2017/2018 is:-

Expenditure Income Net
£ £ £

Public Protection Management 176,998 -7,660 169,338
Business Support Unit 190,804 0 190,804
Public Health Services 1,895,061 -472,264 1,422,797
Trading Standards Services 1,291,335 -282,362 1,008,973
Public Protection Total 3,554,198 -762,286 2,791,912

Page 53

45



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Iltem 6

ENVIRONMENT & PUBLIC PROTECTION
SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

12™ FEBRUARY 2018

HIGHWAY FOOTWAY AND ROAD SAFETY
INVESTMENT PROGRAMME UPDATE

Purpose:

To provide an update on the current investment programme in relation to road safety and
associated infrastructure.

To consider and comment on the following issues:

That the Committee considers and comments on the current investment programme in
relation to road safety and associated infrastructure.

Reasons:
For the Committee’s information.

To be referred to the Executive Board / Council for decision: NO

EXECUTIVE BOARD MEMBER PORTFOLIO HOLDER:- Councillor H.A.L Evans - Environment

Directorate

Name of Head of Service: |Designations: Tel Nos.

S. Pilliner Head of Transport & Engineering 01267 228150
01267 228153

Report Author:

B. Jenkins Strategy & Implementation Manager |E Mail Addresses:

SGPilliner@carmarthenshire.gov.uk

BLJenkins@carmarthenshire.gov.uk

Page 55



mailto:SGPilliner@carmarthenshire.gov.uk
mailto:BLJenkins@carmarthenshire.gov.uk

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

ENVIRONMENT & PUBLIC PROTECTION
SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

12t FEBRUARY 2018

HIGHWAY FOOTWAY AND ROAD SAFETY
STRATEGY INVESTMENT PROGRAMME UPDATE

1.0 Introduction and Background.

1.1 The County Council employs many measures to prevent road traffic casualties including
education, publicity campaigns, training, traffic management and other road safety initiatives
as well as the construction of a number of road safety improvement schemes each year.
The overall strategy is outlined in the Carmarthenshire County Council Local Transport Plan
which is contained within the Joint Local Transport Plan for South West Wales.

1.2 These measures are funded from a variety of sources including both capital and revenue
grants and other funds which are summarised as follows with further details provided in
Table 1 at the end of the report.

2.0 Local Transport Plan / Local Transport Fund

2.1 The South West Wales Integrated Transport Consortium (SWWITCH) was formally dissolved
in early 2014 and Welsh Government required local authorities to prepare a Local Transport
Plan. The four West Wales local authorities agreed to continue a collaborative approach
which is linked to the Swansea Bay City Region and the emerging City Deal. The priorities
within the Carmarthenshire County Council Local Transport Plan (LTP) were approved in
2015.

2.2 Funding which was previously allocated to the Regional Consortium is now allocated to the
individual local authorities on a competitive basis and bids for the Local Transport Fund
(LTF) are submitted to Welsh Government on an annual basis. This LTF Grant is subject to
an ever increasing level of scrutiny as the all Wales funding is limited. Each annual bid is
now limited to a maximum of three projects, one of which must be linked to the provision of
walking and cycling related initiatives as a result of the now enacted Active Travel (Wales)
Act. The Wales Government has also recently advised that this LTF funding stream will be
severely diminished in future years. Next year the level of funding allocated to the LTF will
fall from £20 million per annum to £10 million per annum with £5 million allocated for
schemes currently in delivery and the remaining £5 million allocated for Active Travel
schemes. Four Million pounds is also being made available for local authorities to bid for a
Local Transport Network Fund across Wales.

2.3 Bids for next year’s funding are currently being finalised for submission by the
25t January 2018.




3.0 Safe Routes in the Community

3.1 The Safe Routes in the Community (SRitC) grant provides direct funding from the Welsh
Government for the County Council to deliver projects that improve accessibility and safety,
and encourage walking and cycling within communities. The aim of the Safe Routes in the
Communities programme is to change how people travel, resulting in greater social inclusion
and improved community safety.

Safe Routes in the Communities funds capital works such as: -

e Crossings

« traffic calming measures

e cyclepaths

« footpaths

» secure cycle facilities (including stands and CCTV), lockers and changing facilities.

3.2 The County Council must bid for this funding on an annual basis. The Welsh Government
has advised that only schemes included in a schedule of works to upgrade safe walking
routes to schools included in a response to the Minister in the summer of 2014 would be
considered. Again a maximum of three projects can be included in any bid and for the
current 2017 — 18 year financial bids for works in the Carmarthen and Pontyberem areas
were successful. A total of £25k is included in the current Capital Programme to utilise as
match funding to the 2017 — 18 grant.

3.3 Carmarthenshire County Council has been highly successful in securing this SRitC funding
being consistently among the highest awards for this particular grant.

4.0 Active Travel Act and Local Authority Obligations

4.1 The Active Travel (Wales) Act makes provision for a number of items including the
development of approved maps of existing active travel routes, the promotion of active travel
journeys and to enhance the provision made for walkers and cyclists among others.

4.2 A number of key obligations have been passed to Local Authorities to implement, including
the mapping of routes, the need to have regard for the active travel route network in the
development of transport policies, the promotion of active travel journeys and to enhance the
provision made for walkers and cyclists.

4.3 One of the obligations involved Welsh Government requiring all Local Authorities to submit
details of all walking and cycling routes for inclusion in all Wales database of such routes
(known as Existing Route Map). These details included an audit of all routes and
Carmarthenshire County Council were one of only five Local Authorities that secured Wales
Government approval without the need for further work. The Authority was also required to
submit an Integrated Network Map during 2017.

4.4 Welsh Government have recently advised that future funding for Active Travel related
projects will be based on these Integrated Network Maps.

Page 57




5.0 Road Safety Improvement and Footway Improvement Programme

5.1 At its meeting on the 14" November 2011 the Executive Board approved the criteria for
assessment, selection and prioritisation of Road Safety Improvement and Footway
Improvements to be funded from the Council’s capital budget allocation for such works. A
new 3 year rolling programme was developed and implemented from 2013-14. The prioritised
programme is subject to an annual review to allow for new requests to be assessed and to re-
assess locations where circumstances are known to have changed since the last prioritisation
assessment, with a fundamental review at periodic intervals. The criteria for assessment was
updated in the spring of 2017 and formally approved by Executive Board on 27t February
2017.

5.2 During the summer of 2017 the prioritised programme was reassessed in accordance with
the criteria to determine the next 3 year rolling programme to commence in 2018 — 19. A total
of 365 number requests were included in this exercise the outcome of which is shown in
Table 2 at the end of this report. The schemes will be subject to further feasibility works in
future years, subject to the availability of funding.

5.3 The committed schemes included in Table 1 will continue to be developed and implemented
as funding and any other constraints permit.

6.0 Local Road Safety Grant (Capital)

6.1 The Local Road Safety Grant was introduced in 2000. The Local Road Safety Grant provides
direct funding from the Welsh Government for the County Council to provide engineering
solutions to road safety problems on the county road network. The County Council
prioritises the selection of road safety engineering projects on the basis of historic casualty
statistics along rural routes and at urban cluster sites. The Council assesses the casualty
reduction performance of the each scheme delivered using the grant. There is a strong
partnering approach to all initiatives funded from this grant through groups such as the
Carmarthenshire Speed Limit Working Group with bodies such as Dyfed Powys Police and
GoSafe.

6.2 The County Council must bid to the Welsh Government for funding on an annual basis. The
current programme of road safety engineering works being delivered using the road safety
grant is shown in Table 1 at the end of the report.

7.0 Traffic Management and Accident Prevention Programme

7.1 The following traffic and accident prevention elements are provided on the county road
network using the Councils revenue budget allocation for such works: -

¢ Traffic orders for speed limits, one way working, weight restrictions, width restrictions, buses
only, no entry order, no motor vehicles order, disabled persons parking bays, waiting
restrictions, residents parking zones;

¢ Traffic calming elements, road humps, narrowing’s and chicanes, gateway and entry
treatments, vehicle activated message signs, speed limit roundel markings, coloured
surfaces, surface texture — skid resistant material;

e Hatched road markings, countdown signs, bollards, disabled parking bays.

7.2 The current programme of traffic management and accident prevention projects being
delivered using the revenue funding is shown in Table 1 at the end of the report.

8.0 Recommendations.
Members are asked to note the report.

Pagp 58




SCHEMES FOR 2017 - 18

TABLE 1
SUMMARY OF FUNDING FOR ROAD SAFETY RELATED AND OTHER INFRASTRUCTURE

& CCC Capital budgets (as match funding)

2017/18
PROJECT COMMENTS BUDGET
Murray St MSCP A_nnual capital maintenance linked to Whole £50K
Life Plan
Road Safety Improvement Programme £258k *
C2134 Tycroes Design only — potential s.106 contributions (lncludes
slippage from
. . Construction of Shared Use Facility - 2016/17)
B4303 Swiss Valley - Llethri Road Completion of work commenced in 2016/17
Potential s.106 contributions. Completion of
B4306 Hendy work commenced in 2016/17
Rhos / Saron Footway Improvement Construction
Bronwydd Design only
A4066 Broadway, Laugharne Design only — potential s.106 contributions
Safe Routes in the Community / Schools -
Carmarthen Area Funded by WG Grant £305,259
Pontyberem Area Funded by WG Grant £262,500
Active Travel Projects Funded by WG Local Transport Fund Grant £1,325k

Amman Valley Cycleway

Completion of remaining length at Brynamman
RFC, signing and marketing

Urban Connections

Llanllwch - Alltycnap SUF

Design only

A4138 Llethri Road — Dafen Village

Further continuation of work along A4138
commenced in 2015/16

Llangennech — Bynea

Design only — s.106 contributions

Carmarthen Branded Routes — Llangunnor —
Dyfed Powys Police HQ

Design and construction

Carmarthen Branded Routes - Trinity St Davids

Completion of work commenced in 2016/17 to
link Yr Egin / S4C and Carmarthen Western
Link Road

Towy Valley Cycleway — Abergwili to
Nantgaredig

Design and construction of initial phase (s)

Towy Valley Project — Nantgaredig to Ffairfach

Design only leading to preparation of planning
application

School Transport Routes

Prioritised routes to reduce revenue costs

Active Travel Mapping (including Integrated
Network Maps)

As required by WG

1)
O

(®)
(1)




2017/18

PROJECT COMMENTS BUDGET
Completion of land acquisition, issue of
Ammanford Economic Regeneration Highway :tenders and initial construction works — funded :£961.1k
Infrastructure — Wind Street / Tirydail Lane by WG Local Transport Fund grant
Junction
Continuation of land acquisition, issue of
Cross Hands Economic Link Road Phase 2 itenders and advanced construction works - £2,161.4k
funded by WG Local Transport Fund grant
Traffic Management Schemes (funded by
Road Safety Grant) £445.5k
B4297 Halfway to Talyclun Route treatment works — funded by WG grant
B4297 Tycroes to Gorslas Route treatment works — funded by WG grant
Tr.affic Management Schemes - £237.215k
Miscellaneous
Manor Way, Llanllwch Junction & Splitter island improvements
St Celynin’s Church, Bronwydd Priority Give Way System
George Street Llanelli One Way System
Park Lane Llangennech Weight Limit
Meidrim School & Village (Phase 1) 20 mph restriction
North Parade Carmarthen Qne Way System, various traffic orders,
signage & markings
OVERALL TOTAL 2017/18 BUDGET £6,005.974k

Page 60




TABLE 2

PRIORITISED PROGRAMME FOR ROAD SAFETY, FOOTWAY and

OTHER INFRASTRUCTURE

(FOR DEVELOPMENT and IMPLEMENTATION FROM 2018 — 19 FINANCIAL YEAR on)

LOCATION

Allt y Cnap Road / Llanstephan Road, Johnstown, Carmarthen (B4312 / C2078)

Llanstephan Road flyover, Johnstown (B4312)

Ponthenri (B4317 / C2077)

Llanybydder Square to Pencarreg (A485)

A484 between Idole and Cwmffrwd (A484)

Nantgaredig to Abergorlech (B4310)

Oaklands Junction, Cwmffrwd (A484 / B4309)

Nantycaws (C2071)

Carway / Pontyates

Llangain (NR Lodge/Llwyn-du) (B4312)

Llangain (Belmont to kiosk) (B4312)

Kidwelly (Carmarthen Road) (B4312)

Carmarthen Road, Cwmann (A485)

DETAILED REPORT ATTACHED ?

NO

Page 61




IMPLICATIONS

I confirm that other than those implications which have been agreed with the appropriate Directors /
Heads of Service and are referred to in detail below, there are no other implications associated with this

report :

| Signed: S.Pilliner Head of Transportation and Highways
Policy, Crime & Legal | Finance |ICT Risk Management | Staffing Physical
Disorder and Equalities Issues Implications Assets
YES YES | YES NONE | YES NONE NONE

1. Policy, Crime & Disorder and Equalities

Road Safety is one of the Carmarthenshire Integrated Community Strategies. Road Safety
strategies are also set out in the Carmarthenshire County Council Local Transport Plan which
is contained within the Joint Transport Plan for South West Wales.

Delivery of sustainable transport projects is also one of the objectives of the Carmarthenshire
County Council Local Transport Plan which is contained within the Joint Transport Plan for

South West Wales.

2. Legal

The Council has a statutory responsibility to manage and maintain public roads. That duty
includes the investigation of road traffic accidents, the provision of road safety measures and
enabling the expeditious movement of traffic.

The Council has a statutory responsibility to promote walking and cycling and other sustainable
modes of transport as outlined in the Active Travel (Wales) Act.

3. Finance

The budgets for the current financial year to deliver sustainable transport and road safety
projects are set out in the report.

4. Risk Management Issues

Potential for challenge to the Council’s management of sustainable transport and road safety
project grant claims.

CONSULTATIONS

| confirm that the appropriate consultations have taken in place and the outcomes are as detailed below

Signed: S. Pilliner Head of Transportation and Highways

1. Local Member(s) - N/A.

2. Community / Town Council - N/A.

3. Relevant Partners - N/A.

4. Staff Side Representatives and other Organisations - N/A.

Section 100D Local Government Act, 1972 — Access to Information
List of Background Papers used in the preparation of this report:
THESE ARE DETAILED BELOW

Title of Document File Ref No. | Locations that the papers are available for public inspection

Joint Transport Plan for http://www.carmarthenshire.gov.wales/media/1085004/Joint-
South West Wales Transport-Plan-300115.pdf

Page 62


http://www.carmarthenshire.gov.wales/media/1085004/Joint-Transport-Plan-300115.pdf
http://www.carmarthenshire.gov.wales/media/1085004/Joint-Transport-Plan-300115.pdf

Agenda Item 7

ENVIRONMENTAL & PUBLIC PROTECTION
SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

12t FEBRUARY 2018

REVIEW OF LED CONVERSION PROJECT

To consider and comment on the following issues:

The updated phasing of the LED schemes and to be informed with the up to date
progress of the LED lantern conversion project to date

Reasons:

For The Committee’s information

To be referred to the Executive Board / Council for decision: NO

Executive Board Member Portfolio Holders:

Clir. Hazel Evans (Environment)

Directorate:

Environment

Name of Head of Service:
Stephen Pilliner

Report Author:
Arwel Price

Designations:

Head of Transportation and
Highways

Public Lighting Engineer

Tel Nos. / E-Mail Addresses:

01267 228150

SGPllliner@carmarthenshire.gov.uk

01554 742 288
awprice@carmarthenshire.gov.uk

™
omeor Sir Gar 2

Carmarthenshire

G, ===\
ol"”)' Co\l“o

EICH cYNGORaArleinamdani
www.sirgar.llyw.cymru

YOUR counciLdoitonline
www.carmarthenshire.gov.wales

Page 63


mailto:SGPIlliner@carmarthenshire.gov.uk
mailto:awprice@carmarthenshire.gov.uk

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

ENVIRONMENTAL & PUBLIC PROTECTION SCRUTINY
COMMITTEE

12t FEBRUARY 2018

REVIEW OF LED CONVERSION PROJECT

To update the committee on the phasing and progress of the LED lantern conversion

program.

The Executive Board approved the LED lantern conversion under the Street lighting
PBB saving options on 27t July 2015. The department has secured the funding through
a combination of the Welsh Government Invest to Save (12S) and from the Council’s

reserves.

The second phase of the program is almost complete and the attached report gives the

details of the phasing and the savings achieved.

The report is for the Committee’s information.

DETAILED REPORT ATTACHED?

YES

™
omeor Sir Gar 2

Carmarthenshire

Page 64 gy s

EICH cYNGORaArleinamdani
www.sirgar.llyw.cymru

YOUR counciLdoitonline
www.carmarthenshire.gov.wales




IMPLICATIONS

I confirm that other than those implications which have been agreed with the appropriate
Directors / Heads of Service and are referred to in detail below, there are no other implications
associated with this report.

Signed: S.G. Pillner Head of Transportation and Highways

Policy, Legal Finance ICT Risk Staffing Physical
Crime & Management | Implications Assets
Disorder Issues

and

Equalities

NONE NONE YES NONE NONE NONE NONE

3. Finance — Capital has been secured via the Wales Government Invest to Safe fund
and from reserves. Budget efficiencies of £627,000 have been delivered to date with a
further £107,000 efficiency to be delivered in phase 3 of the programme during 2018/19.

CONSULTATIONS

I confirm that the appropriate consultations have taken in place and the outcomes are as detailed
below:

Signed: S.G. Pillner Title: Head of Transportation and Highways

1. Local Member(s) — N/A

2. Community / Town Councils — N/A

3. Relevant Partners — N/A

4. Staff Side Representatives and other Organisations — N/A

Section 100D Local Government Act, 1972 — Access to Information
List of Background Papers used in the preparation of this report:

These are detail below:

Title of Document File Ref No. / Locations that the papers are available for public
inspection

STREET LIGHTING PBB http://online.carmarthenshire.gov.uk/agendas/eng/EXEB20150727/index.asp

SAVING OPTIONS

o i GALIA EICH CYNGOrRarleinamdani
oreer Sir Gar www.sirgar.llyw.cymru

I YOUR couNciLdoitonline
gy e www.carmarthenshire.gov.wales Page 65


http://online.carmarthenshire.gov.uk/agendas/eng/EXEB20150727/index.asp

This page is intentionally left blank



Report to Environment Scrutiny Committee LED Lighting Project Update
12th February 2018

1. Introduction and Background

1.1 The Authority’s Public Lighting section has continued to implement a programme
to convert sodium lanterns to LED lanterns as approved by Executive board on 27t
July 2015. The programme was developed to deliver a targeted efficiency saving of
£627,000 over a three year period.

1.2 The report to Executive Board set out that £401,000 of revenue savings would be
achieved through converting the Sodium lamps to LED with a further £227,000 to be
delivered from reduced maintenance, labour and plant costs.

1.3 Executive Board resolved:

1.3.1 That the Technical Services Department be authorised to prepare a
business case to pursue the option of funding the capital investment
required to deliver the “Converting sodium lanterns to LED lanterns”
option savings over the next years to implement Phases 1-3 noted in the
report, via the WAG “Invest to Save” fund.

1.3.2 That the Technical Services Department’s reserves (Fleet
Management Reserve) be utilized to fund the capital works (up to
£1.875m) required to deliver the PBB savings identified in Phase 1 and
Phase 2 of the report, and that the Department continues to investigate
alternative funding for Phase 3;

1.3.3 That the Public Lighting section fully implements measures to
deliver the options for reducing maintenance, vehicle and labour costs
noted in the report thus reducing its operational costs in order to meet
its PBB targets;

1.3.4 That, should the proposals noted above fail to be delivered, then a
programme of “de-commissioning” lights on the road networks be
prepared by the Public Lighting section to achieve the required budget
savings for the outstanding amount and report thereon be submitted in
due course.

1.4 The capital investment required to fund delivery of the first phases of the
programme was secured from a Wales Government Invest to Save Fund and
reserves.

The programme was structured into three phases as set out in the Table One
overleaf:

Page 67



Table One

Phase Programme Detail Capital Forecast Revenue
Investment 000’s Savings
£ £
1 Convert 3,202 925 119
Lanterns to
Dimmable LED
2 Convert 4,429 950 153
Lanterns to
Dimmable LED
3 Convert 4,776 1090 137
Lanterns to
Dimmable LED
Total 2,965 409

2.0 Progress

Funding for the programme was secured through a £1.4 million Invest to Save Loan
and the balance from the reserves, as approved by Executive Board.

The original programme was reviewed and amended to exploit advancement in
technology and improve efficiency during the installation phase. The detail is set out
in Table Two below:

Table Two
Phase Original Detail Progress | Capital Variati | Revenue
Investment on Savings
Incurred/Forecast Realised/
000’s Forecast
1 Convert 3,400 Converted 586 -339 145
Lanterns to 3,400 lamps
Dimmable LED
2 Convert 2,945 Converted 591 -106 162
Lanterns to 2,945 lamps
Dimmable /high
Wattage LED
3 Convert 6,074 Ready for 803 - 107
Lanterns to Implementa
Dimmable LED tion in 18/19 | (Out To Tender)
Total 1,980 -445 414

Page 68




Cumulative savings of £320,000 have also been realised from changes to the
operational delivery in the areas of maintenance, vehicles, energy and labour. The
total PBB saving delivered to the end of Phase Two is £627,000. There is a further
saving of £107,000 which is forecast as Phase Three is implemented. Phase Three is
currently out to tender.

The saving delivered to the end of the current financial year is consistent with the
budget profile as set out in Table Three below.

Table Three
2015/16 2016/17 2017/18 2018/19
£000’s £000’s £000’s £000’s
PBB Savings 258 196 173 107
Target
Cumulative 258 454 627 734

In terms of capital investment, the authority has drawn down £1,100,000 of an
agreed invest to save loan of £1,400,000 and plans to draw down the full value of the
loan for phase 3 of the programme.

The forecast savings moving forward are reliant on the Department continuing to
sustain the efficiencies, the programme is subject to risk particularly with regards to
energy costs.

The efficiencies gained from the procurement process has enabled the first two
phases of the LED conversion program to be delivered below the original forecasted
budgeted costs. This will enable us to fund the majority of the LED lantern
conversions as set out in Phase 3. The full extent of the Phase Three delivery
programme will be know when the tender process is concluded later this month.

The project to date has been successful in delivering the efficiencies forecast at the
outset and it is envisaged that phase 3 will continue in the same vein.

Recommendation

Members are asked to consider and comment on the progress to date as set out in
the report.

Page 69



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 8

ENVIRONMENT & PUBLIC PROTECTION
SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

12™ FEBRUARY 2018

TOWY VALLEY PATH - EXPENDITURE

Purpose:

To provide the Environment and Public Protection Scrutiny Committee with information in
order to scrutinise the expenditure for the Tywi Valley Path project.

To consider and comment on the following issues:

The expenditure in relation to the Tywi Valley Path project.

Reasons:

On the 6" December 2017, the Policy and Resources Scrutiny Committee resolved that ‘the
Environment and Public Protection Scrutiny Committee be requested to scrutinise expenditure
on the Towy Valley Path.

At its Committee meeting on the 15™ January 2018, the Environmental and Public Protection
Scrutiny Committee requested that a more detailed report be provided in order for the
Committee to scrutinise the expenditure accordingly.

To be referred to the Executive Board / Council for decision: NO

EXECUTIVE BOARD MEMBER PORTFOLIO HOLDER:-

Councillor H.A.L Evans — Environment,

Directorate

Name of Head of Service: |Designations: Tel Nos.

S. Pilliner Head of Transportation & Highways (01267 228150

Report Author: E Mail Addresses:

Sam Palmer Project Officer - Towy Valley Path SGPilliner@carmarthenshire.gov.uk
o s car g S SIeoRarleinamdant _

Cari thenshi =
armartensrs Your counciLdoitonline Page 71

G, 2N .
ity o www.carmarthenshire.gov.wales


mailto:SGPilliner@carmarthenshire.gov.uk

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

ENVIRONMENT & PUBLIC PROTECTION
SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

12" FEBRUARY 2018

TYWI VALLEY PATH - EXPENDITURE

1.0 Introduction and Background

The Tywi Valley Path scheme aims to create a world class active travel facility in the Towy Valley
linking Carmarthen to Llandeilo. The creation of the shared use path will link communities, create
tourism opportunities, and encourage safe sustainable and healthy travel. The total length of the
scheme is approximately 20 kilometres, and due to its size the scheme has been broken down
into different sections for implementation. The Western section extends from Abergwili to
Nantgaredig and the Eastern section stretches from Nantgaredig to Ffairfach. The majority of the
proposed route travels through privately owned land with small sections traversing county roads
and County Council owned farmland. Significant lengths follow the route of the disused former
railway line from Carmarthen to Llandeilo. Implementation of the scheme will be dependent on
land availability and funding.

Early studies were undertaken in 2002 and development has continued since 2015 following
completion of a feasibility study. The project has now progressed to where construction on the
Western section has begun and land negotiations are being undertaken. Works on the Planning
application for the Eastern section continue to progress.

The feasibility study provided a high level cost estimate for the path of between £5 and £7
million. The study also included an assessment of the employment potential and economic
benefits that could be generated by the project. The studies set measureable targets for
increasing leisure cycling within the lower Towy Valley with the aim of encouraging 15,000
additional day visits per year and 5,000 overnight stays in the region. These estimates have
been based on the actual measured visitor numbers for the Afan Green Family Trail in Neath
Port Talbot. These economic benefits are estimated to be between £860k and £2 million per
annum.

Further work is currently being undertaken to review the economic benefits and the expectation
is that the estimate of the visitor numbers is conservative leading to increased benefit.

Funding for the project is currently provided and subject to further bidding, projected from a
number of sources that includes :—

1. Carmarthenshire CC Capital funds — allocations are included in the Capital programme up
to 2021/22.

2. WG Local Transport Fund Grants — awarded as part of a wider Active Travel package of
schemes for the last 3 financial years (15/16 to 17/18) to fund initial scheme development.

3. EU Rural Communities Development Fund (RCDF) — two separate applications for
discrete elements have been successful.

o Siv G EICH CYNGOrarleinamdani
_ _ c o 'tﬁ"' Gha_" www.sirgarllyw.cymru
armarthensnire - -
Page {2 G cent? Your counciLdoitonline

= A f
ity o www.carmarthenshire.gov.wales



2.0 Expenditure to date

Expenditure to date has been focussed on the development of the project. Works undertaken to
date include:

Initial project feasibility studies

WelTag Planning reports

Biosecurity reports

Ecological impact studies and habitat surveys

Consultation exercises

Planning fees

Design fees

Construction costs — initial section of ‘on highway’ route adjacent to Abergwili Concrete
Works undertaken in 2016/17 (value - £40,000)

Legal costs and fees in relation to land purchase and Legal advice
Project management fees

Works packages have been tendered for the following sections and works are due to commence
imminently with completion during the 2017/18 financial year:

W1 from Abergwili to connect to W2 along the county road. Cost £243,000
W3 - Anglers Car Park, Whitemill. Cost £70,000

W4a — Nantgaredig RFC to Station Road, Nantgaredig. Cost £122,000 (to be completed
during late Summer 2018)

The scheme income and expenditure profile projected to March 2018 are set out in Table One
below:-

3.0 Expenditure profile — Table One

Totals Breakdown of Expenditure to Date
Total amount Internal Internal Specialist Leqgal/
spent to date desian project Other internal| Study & | Construction Lagd* Other costs
(since cos?s management costs Consultants Costs costs
2015/16) costs costs
West | £653,652.61 |£213,809.49| £58,511.31 £855.00 £173,367.93| £189,151.35 | £5,822.30 | £12,135.23
East | £178,960.20 |£144,388.25 £0.00 £0.00 £29,093.00 £0.00 £3,461.55 | £2,017.40
Total | £832,612.81 |£358,197.74| £58,511.31 £855.00 £202,460.93 | £189,151.35 | £9,283.85 | £14,152.63
Funding breakdown to date
Grant income .
received to CEE Crapiiz] Grand Total
to date
date
West | £379,300.74 |£274,351.87 | £653,652.61
East | £103,532.78 | £75,427.42 | £178,960.20
Total | £482,833.52 |£349,779.29 | £832,612.81
*Land negotiations are ongoing.

Additional costs will be incurred during 2018.19 financial year for example Section W4a will be
constructed during the summer.

EICH cYNGOR arleinamdani

PN
omsor Sir Gar ) www.sirgarllyw.cymru

Carmarthenshire . .
> YOUR counciLdoitonline
www.carmarthenshire.gov.wales

[l
O["”Y Ccow®



4.0 Future Funding Profile

Funding Breakdown Comments
2017/18 2018/19 2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 Totals
CCC £625,000.00 | £550,000.00 | £500,000.00 | £500,000.00 | £2,175,000.00
Additional
WG £1.065,000.00 £878,000.00 | £750,000.00 | £750,000.00 | £750,000.00 £4,193,000.00 | grant secured
LTF *k%k *kk *k%k *kk )
in 2017/18
WG £224,800.00 £224,800.00
RCDF e ,800.
£1,289,800.00 |£1,503,000.00 |£1,300,000.00 | £1,250,000.00 | £1,250,000.00 | £6,592,800.00

*** Funding subject to bids made to Welsh Government on annual basis. The Local Transport
Fund grant may be subject to change in future years.

5.0 Future Benefits

The initial high level feasibility report concluded that the economic appraisal of the proposals with
broad economic return relating to direct and indirect tourism benefits equate to an economic
contribution of between £860k to £2m per annum and 17-41 Full time employment opportunities
created. These figures are based on the conservative visitor numbers set out above and clearly
with the potential that the Towy Valley has this could be significantly higher.

Other benefits derived from the project will include:

Social and economic benefits:
- Better health and human well-being for all
- Creation of jobs locally
- Diversification of local economy
- Greener transport corridor
- Enhanced tourism and recreation opportunities adding value to local distinctiveness of the
areas’ rich heritage and culture

Environmental benefits:
- measures which promote a positive contribution to improving air quality and reducing the
adverse impact of transport on health and climate change, including reducing carbon
emissions;

Biodiversity and climate change benefits:

- Creation and improvement of existing habitats

- The development of ecological corridors ) to enhance the ‘green infrastructure’ corridors
or wildlife corridors within the locality, making the local environment more permeable to
wildlife;

- Landscape permeability through use of sustainable materials as the base for the access
route

- measures which help to reduce the negative impact of transport across the region on the
natural and built environment including biodiversity;

- Strengthening ecosystems resilience through new areas of planting which contain locally
sourced native species rich compositions which will be of benefit to local fauna;

Further research is being undertaken to fully enhance the final cost benefit ratio for the scheme
to support future funding bids for the project.

DETAILED REPORT ATTACHED? NO

o S GALIA EICH CYNGORarleinamdani
oreer Sir Gar www.sirgarllyw.cymru

> = Carmarthenshire . .
Page 74 o, =24 YOur counciLdoitonline
ity Cont www.carmarthenshire.gov.wales



IMPLICATIONS

| confirm that other than those implications which have been agreed with the appropriate Directors /
Heads of Service and are referred to in detail below, there are no other implications associated with this

report :

Signed: S.G. Pillner Head of Transportation and Highways

Policy, Crime & Legal | Finance |ICT Risk Management | Staffing Physical
Disorder and Equalities Issues Implications Assets
YES YES | YES NO YES NO YES

Policy, Crime & Disorder and Equalities
Road safety is one of the seven key priorities of the Carmarthenshire Community Safety
Partnership.

Improving walking and cycling links is highlighted as a policy in the Joint Local Transport Plan
for South West Wales (2015/2020).

The project is included in the Executive Board Carmarthenshire County Council Moving
Forward in Carmarthenshire: the Next 5 Years

Legal

The Council has a statutory responsibility to promote walking and cycling and other sustainable
modes of transport as outlined in the Active Travel (Wales) Act.

Purchase of land required to deliver the scheme will be subject to the necessary legal process

Finance
The funding sources for the Tywi Valley Path project are set out in the report.

Grant funding has been secured from the Welsh Government’s Local Transport Fund (LTF)
and Rural Communities Development Fund (RCDF).

Risk Management Issues

External funding is secured primarily from Welsh Government LTF grant with an annual bid
which is a competitive process with an inherent risk that any particular funding bid may not be
successful in part or in full. Works for the delivery of the scheme will be adjusted to reflect the
level of funding secured.

Physical Assets

Land will be acquired to deliver the scheme increasing the portfolio of land maintainable at the
Authority’s expense.

CONSULTATIONS

I confirm that the appropriate consultations have taken in place and the outcomes are as detailed below
Signhed S.G. Pillner Head of Transportation and Highways

1. Local Member(s) — N/A

2. Community / Town Council — N/A

3. Relevant Partners — N/A

4. Staff Side Representatives and other Organisations - N/A

Section 100D Local Government Act, 1972 — Access to Information
List of Background Papers used in the preparation of this report:
There are none

wor i GAPIA EICH CYNGOrarleinamdani
oreer Sir Gar www.sirgarllyw.cymru

Carmarthenshire . .
PR ¢ YOUR counciLdoitonline Page 75
ity Cont www.carmarthenshire.gov.wales



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 9

ENVIRONMENTAL & PUBLIC PROTECTION
SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

12™M FEBRUARY 2018

REVISED
FORTHCOMING ITEMS FOR NEXT MEETING
2NP MARCH 2018

Discussion Topic Background
A report to provide members with an update on the
Trading Standards Update current position and the future services of Trading
Standards.

A representative from WLGA will be in attendance and
will provide the Committee with an overview on the
Trading Standards regulatory work.

This item will provide a report on the progress against the

Quarter 3 — actions and measures in the 2017/18 Well-being
Performance Management Objectives delivery Plan relevant to the Committee’s
Report for the Councils remit, up to 315t December 2017.

2017/18 well-being objectives

This standard quarterly item enables members to
Budget Monitoring 2017/18 undertake their monitoring role of the Environment
Department, Public Protection Services and Community
Safety Team’s revenue and capital budgets.

This report will provided the Committee with a detailed
Parking Strategy review of the current Parking Strategy which commenced
in May 2017.

This report was considered at the additional
Review of LED Conversion Environmental and Public Scrutiny Committee on
Project 12t February 2018.

Carmarthenshire

- ca3f  ECHCWGoRarleinamdani Page 77
oreer Sir Gar www.sirgar.llyw.cymru

q 2 YOur counciLdoitonline
ity Cow www.carmarthenshire.gov.wales



This page is intentionally left blank



	Agenda
	5 SERVICE DELIVERY PLAN 2017/18 - ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION SERVICES
	Plan

	6 HIGHWAY FOOTWAY AND ROAD SAFETY INVESTMENT PROGRAMME UPDATE
	7 REVIEW OF LED CONVERSION PROJECT
	Report

	8 TOWY VALLEY PATH - EXPENDITURE
	9 FORTHCOMING ITEMS

